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          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Good afternoon.

          3  And welcome to the Education Committee's first

          4  formal hearing on the resolution demanding the

          5  Governor to fully fund CFE, which is Resolution No.

          6  14-A.  And this is an oversight to Campaign for

          7  Fiscal Equity lawsuit, the Governor's failure to

          8  comply, and the impact on New York City's schools.

          9                 Today, the Committee on Education

         10  will hear testimony regarding the Campaign for

         11  Fiscal Equity lawsuit, and the impact that the

         12  Governor's failure to comply with the order.  And

         13  that case is having on our City's schools.

         14                 We will also consider proposed

         15  Resolution 14-A, a resolution that calls on Governor

         16  Pataki to immediately abide by the court order and

         17  the lawsuit, and to fully fund New York City public

         18  schools.

         19                 It isn't news to any of you in this

         20  room that our school system is in a state of

         21  emergency and that we cannot resolve the crisis in

         22  our schools without adequate funding from the State.

         23  I'm not going to go into the details of the CFE

         24  lawsuit, because we have Geri Palast here, the

         25  Executive Director of CFE, who will give us an
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          2  overview of the litigation.  All I will say about

          3  the CFE litigation is that there is a court order

          4  demanding that the State pay about $14 billion in

          5  operating funds and $9 billion in capital funds to

          6  the City, over the next five years.  So far, the

          7  Governor has refused to abide by the court order,

          8  and continues to find ways to avoid his obligations

          9  to the children of New York City, by endlessly

         10  appealing this case.

         11                 I want to give you a few statistics

         12  from the preliminary Mayor's Management Report,

         13  which was released just last week, so that while we

         14  listen to the testimony today, you know exactly how

         15  bad the situation is.  These are statistics from

         16  Fiscal Year 2005.  Only 47.3 percent of students

         17  passed the Regents exam. Only slightly more than

         18  half, 53 percent of general education students

         19  graduated within four years of entry into high

         20  school. Twenty- eight point six percent of

         21  elementary school, 19.5 percent of middle school,

         22  and a staggering number, 48 percent of high schools

         23  exceeds capacity, meaning that they're over crowded.

         24    And finally, under two percent of school buildings

         25  are considered "in good condition".  The vast
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          2  majority of them, slightly over 80 percent, are

          3  merely in fair condition.  This is a shameful

          4  situation, that we cannot tolerate any longer.

          5                 We have a court order in our hands,

          6  and I want all of you to know that we are planning

          7  to do everything in our power to make sure that our

          8  schools get the money they deserve.  And that our

          9  children get the education they deserve.

         10                 And now, we will hear from Geri

         11  Palast, the Executive Director of CFE, and Jessica

         12  Garcia, the Director of Community Affairs.  Geri

         13  Palast.  Can you press the button please, and pull

         14  the mike up to you.

         15                 MS. PALAST:  Okay.  Can you hear me?

         16  Okay.

         17                 Good afternoon Councilman Jackson.

         18  Thank you very much for having us here, and coming

         19  up with this important resolution at this critical

         20  time.  I am the new Executive Director of CFE, and

         21  we, as an organization, wholeheartedly support your

         22  resolution.

         23                 The Campaign for Fiscal Equity echoes

         24  your urgency in the need to resolve this matter.

         25  The state of our schools requires and immediate
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          2  political solution to the CFE case, in this

          3  legislative session.  Poor children in New York

          4  receive about $2,000 less per pupil than their

          5  wealthier counterparts, the largest per pupil

          6  funding gap between wealthy and poor students in the

          7  nation.  Albany's refusal to remedy the persistent

          8  inequities in the State' education funding system is

          9  shameful.

         10                 We've heard a lot this morning

         11  already about the $3.3 billion surplus.  This is an

         12  historic opportunity to make good on the Governor's

         13  word to improve education throughout the State. This

         14  surplus will more than pay for the first year of the

         15  schools for New York Future's Act, the bill already

         16  introduced in the Assembly, calls for $2.1 billion

         17  Statewide to fund the first year of reforms.

         18                 We've heard a lot this morning in

         19  addition to the surplus, about the facilities

         20  problems and we've also heard from Noreen Connell

         21  already, how cheap it would be to solve this problem

         22  today.  I'm here really, to give you a background on

         23  the lawsuit, and so let me go for that.

         24                 CFE first brought its case in the

         25  courts in 1993, nearly 13 years ago.  A whole
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          2  generation of school children have suffered due to

          3  this unconscionable foot dragging.  That year, CFE

          4  filed a constitutional challenge against the State

          5  of New York, on behalf of New York City's school

          6  children, for failing to uphold Article 1 of the

          7  State Constitution.

          8                 In 1995, the Court of Appeals

          9  interpreted Article 1 to mean that every child in

         10  New York State is entitled to the opportunity for a

         11  sound, basic education.  After CFE presented

         12  evidence on the City's schools, it was clear that

         13  hundreds of thousands of school children, especially

         14  from those poor and minority backgrounds, were being

         15  deprived of the basic right. Their schools were

         16  gravely under funded.  They were over crowded,

         17  dilapidated, lacked facilities and supplies

         18  essential for learning, such as up- to- date text

         19  books, libraries, and labs, of which you've heard

         20  more about this morning.  And had the least

         21  qualified and most inexperienced teachers.  As

         22  Justice DeGrasse, of the State Supreme Court

         23  concluded, the education provided to New York City

         24  students is so deficient that it falls below the

         25  constitutional floor.
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          2                 In 2003, after ten years of

          3  litigation, the highest court in the State came down

          4  firmly on the side of justice, and on the side of

          5  our children.  The Court of Appeals upheld Justice

          6  DeGrasse's 2001 trial court decision, decisively

          7  agreeing that the State's education funding system

          8  was unconstitutional.

          9                 To remedy the violation, the Court of

         10  Appeals called upon the Governor and the Legislature

         11  to determine the cost of providing the opportunity

         12  for a sound, basic education, to reform the funding

         13  mechanism, and to revamp the accountability system.

         14  The State was given ample time, then 13 months to

         15  implement the reforms.

         16                 Instead of abiding by the court

         17  order, the Governor and the Legislature did

         18  absolutely nothing.  Their defiance has made New

         19  York the only state, out of more than two dozen or

         20  so to blatantly defy a specific ruling in cases

         21  where courts have invalidated state education

         22  finance systems.

         23                 Just after the 2004 compliance

         24  deadline, in the vacuum left by lawmakers, Justice

         25  DeGrasse, to whom the case has been remanded by the
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          2  Court of Appeals, ordered the convening of an

          3  independent panel of special masters.  They were

          4  ordered to study the problem, and recommend specific

          5  remedies.

          6                 In March, 2005, nearly a year ago,

          7  the court adopted the recommendations of the special

          8  masters and articulated specific dollar amounts and

          9  reforms.  The judge ordered the State to provide

         10  $5.6 billion in operating aid, and $9.2 billion in

         11  building aid to the City's schools.

         12                 The Governor immediately appealed the

         13  order on the grounds that the court's compliance

         14  order violates the doctrine of separation of powers.

         15    Spun by the State as judicial excess, the DeGrasse

         16  decision, in truth, is in keeping with the long

         17  tradition of judicial involvement in education that

         18  dates back to Brown versus Board of Education.

         19                 The historical record is replete with

         20  cases showing that in order to protect the rights of

         21  citizens, courts can indeed direct executives to

         22  implement detailed mandates.  Just last year, in a

         23  school- funding case in Kansas that resembles CFE,

         24  the highest court ordered the Kansas State

         25  Legislature to more than double the amount of
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          2  increases it had budgeted for education, or face a

          3  shutdown of the entire school system.  It gave the

          4  State one month to act.  The threat from the court

          5  impelled Kansas lawmakers to act immediately, and

          6  budget the court- mandated amount.

          7                 The Governor's latest appeal is a

          8  clear attempt to delay a solution to CFE, to posture

          9  and procrastinate at the expense of another

         10  generation of students.  Whatever the Appellate

         11  Division's forthcoming ruling, the current appeal

         12  does not absolve the Governor from complying with

         13  the underlying order of the Court of Appeals, which

         14  is now over 560 days past the compliance deadline.

         15                 There is a foreseeable conclusion to

         16  this case. Your resolution moves us another step

         17  along the way.  The State must use its surplus to

         18  solve this problem.  The State must move immediately

         19  to enact the school, the New York Futures  -- excuse

         20  me, the Schools for New York Future's Act.  And

         21  really, to end this delay in the courts, and get the

         22  money to our schools.

         23                 Thank you for your time, and for

         24  holding this important hearing.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Any questions of
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          2  this panel? Okay.  Council Member Lanza.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Thank you

          4  Chairman.  Good afternoon.  In 1993, when the CFE

          5  lawsuit was brought, how much did the City combine

          6  with the State spend for the public education in the

          7  City of New York?

          8                 MS. GARCIA: The per people

          9  expenditure or --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Would you please

         11  identify yourself for the record please?

         12                 MS. GARCIA: Sure.  My name is Jessica

         13  Garcia.  I'm the Director of Outreach at the

         14  Campaign for Fiscal Equity.  At the time that we

         15  went to trial, back in 1999, the per people

         16  expenditure was around $10,100 per people.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: It was

         18  initially brought in 1993, though.  My question is

         19   --

         20                 MS. GARCIA: In 1993?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Yes.

         22                 MS. GARCIA: I actually don't know

         23  that figure.  But the disparity has always  -- with

         24  the Downstate's, it has always been around $1,200.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: I'm not asking
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          2  about the disparity.  I'm asking about the total

          3  funds, the total monies spent for public school

          4  education here in New York City.

          5                 MS. GARCIA: I don't know that figure

          6  off the top of my heard.  Sorry.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: What about

          8  today.  Do you know what the number is today?

          9                 MS. GARCIA: In New York City?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Yes.

         11                 MS. GARCIA: Isn't the City budget

         12  around $14 billion?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: It's a little

         14  more than that. Close to $15 billion.  What is the

         15  right number?  In your opinion.

         16                 MS. GARCIA: Well, what  --  our City

         17   --  we commissioned a study a couple of years ago,

         18  and what our researchers had found that in order to

         19  educate kids, New York City kinds, at an adequate

         20  level, New York City did need $5.6 billion more.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: And that  -- so

         22    --

         23                 MS. GARCIA: And that was two years

         24  ago, when we were spending about I think $12 billion

         25  total.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: So you think

          3  the right number is about $17 billion.

          4                 MS. GARCIA: It needs to be adjusted

          5  for inflation, and to be brought up to date.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: But no more

          7  than that.

          8                 MS. GARCIA: To be honest with you,

          9  that was a figure for adequacy. Not necessarily for

         10  excellence.  For making sure that all children had

         11  the opportunity to take AP classes.  It wasn't an

         12  aspirational number.  It was basically setting that

         13  ground level, that minimum adequate level that was

         14  needed for New York City's children.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: So I guess what

         16  I'm asking is, if you're going to bring a lawsuit, I

         17  would imagine you would at least have a position on

         18  what it  --  how much is enough.  And to say that

         19  it's $5.6 million more, but perhaps you know, we

         20  need to look at other factors to determine how much

         21  more we need thereafter, it would seem to me that

         22  you should know how much money is enough.

         23                 MS. GARCIA: Well, there's no answer

         24  for what is really needed to solve our urban

         25  education problems.  That is our best guess, based
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          2  on what our research has shown.  And the Regents,

          3  the Board of Regents has agreed with that figure.

          4  Our study agreed with that figure.  And even the

          5  Governor's study, the Standard and Poors study, came

          6  out with a very similar figure.  And so that's what

          7  we're working with right now.  Obviously, this is a

          8  number that needs to be revisited on a regular

          9  basis.  And we recommend that every four years, a

         10  costing out study be done, to make sure that we're

         11  on the right track.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: I think what's

         13  troubling to me, at least, about what you just said,

         14  was that there is no answer.  And I think there

         15  ought to be an answer.  This City spends more money

         16  every single year on education, and yet, as I've sat

         17  on this Committee over the last four years, there

         18  aren't many folks, many people that have come before

         19  the Committee happy with the system.  And so,

         20  despite the fact that we keep putting money into it

         21   --  I'm not here to suggest that we don't need more

         22  money, and we don't need to bring more resources to

         23  our schools.  I do believe that we need to do that.

         24  We need to bring as much as we can, because it's one

         25  of the most important thing we do as a government.
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          2  But nevertheless, we keep pouring more and more

          3  money into the system, and no one seems to be happy.

          4    So I'm not sure that it's just about money.  And I

          5  think it's important that when you come here, and

          6  you talk about a lawsuit, that you ought to have a

          7  number.  You ought to have a goal.  You ought to be

          8  able to sit there and tell me that there is a

          9  number, and there is a  --  that we think would be

         10  adequate.  Not that there is no good answer.

         11                 And one last question.   --

         12                 MS. PALAST: Could I just make one

         13  more point.  I think you have to go back to what

         14  Jessica said, in that there's in a sense, two

         15  different standards.  The costing out study was to

         16  address adequacy.  It was how do you minimally

         17  prepare students here in New York City?  So I think

         18  there is an answer, which was the answer that she

         19  gave.  I think there is a second answer, which is

         20  how do we move beyond mere adequacy, to excellent.

         21                 I think the  --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: I really don't

         23  know what you just said.  You just gave  --  you

         24  didn't give an answer again, twice.  To say she gave

         25  an answer when she, herself said, there is no
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          2  answer, and my point is, and this is what concerns

          3  me.  If there's a goal, you come here, you can

          4  smile, you can smile all you want.  But you come

          5  here as experts, and I would imagine you are. But

          6  you ought to have a goal.  It's important to

          7  government to be able to say that this is what we

          8  think is enough.  Whether it's $15 billion, $20

          9  billion, $25 billion.  And again, you know, I want

         10  to get to the right number.  But it seems to me that

         11  when you come here and when you talk about there not

         12  being an answer, and it's a moving target, what that

         13  is susceptible to is the kind of resolution that we

         14  have before us, the kind of press conference that we

         15  saw downstairs.  What that allows for is folks to

         16  come here and just take shots at people, as opposed

         17  to constructive, I think, a constructive process.

         18                 So if this is about taking cheap

         19  political shots at Governor Pataki, then not having

         20  an answer is the right way to attack this.  But if

         21  it's about bringing the right resources to our

         22  children, then we need to come together and know

         23  what that number is.  And I'm just a little curious.

         24    You mention the Governor, but would you --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member
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          2   --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Excuse me.

          4  Just one last point.  Would you support an amendment

          5  to this resolution that would include calling upon

          6  the State Legislature, which after all, has a budget

          7  power in the State, together with the Governor,

          8  would you support an amendment that would call upon

          9  the State Senate and the State Assembly not to pass

         10  a budget that does not include a remedy or provision

         11  for providing the monies that the court order has

         12  called for?

         13                 MS. GARCIA: Of course.  This is an

         14  order that needs to be resolved by all three

         15  parties.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Thank you.

         17                 MS. GARCIA: And the answer, by the

         18  way, is $5.6 billion.  That's how much more we need.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         21  Council Member Daniel Garodnick, from Manhattan.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you

         23  Mr. Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And my

         25  colleagues, let me just stay focused for a second
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          2  here.  Please understand that this hearing is only

          3  scheduled to go for a certain period of time.  And

          4  this is not the only witness, and I want to make

          5  sure that by the end of the day, that we have all of

          6  the witnesses testify.  So I'm going to ask all of

          7  my colleagues to be brief and concise.  So that we

          8  can move the agenda.  Thank you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you

         10  Mr. Chairman. And indeed I will be both brief and

         11  concise.  This is really just a question about the

         12  legal process, and where exactly we were today.

         13                 Just starting back in July of 2004,

         14  when the Court of Appeals reversed the Appellate

         15  Division, it gave that as the specific date in which

         16  the Legislature and the Governor had to act. And

         17  that date came and went.  And Justice Leland

         18  DeGrasse subsequently, the next year, in 2005, March

         19  of 2005, he adopted the report of the special

         20  masters.  Right?  In March of 2005?  Is that right?

         21                 MS. PALAST: I think so, yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.  And

         23  just from that point forward, the Governor appealed

         24  the report of the special masters to the Appellate

         25  Division?
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          2                 MS. GARCIA: Right.  Judge DeGrasse

          3  accepted the recommendations of the special masters,

          4  issued an order, and that order, which was issued by

          5  Justice DeGrasse, has been appealed by the Governor.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Appealed to

          7  the Appellate Division.

          8                 MS. GARCIA: Appealed to the Appellate

          9  Division.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Not to the

         11  Court of Appeals.

         12                 MS. GARCIA: Correct.  The Governor

         13  had a choice.  He could have appealed to the Court

         14  of Appeals.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Because

         16  there were constitutional questions?

         17                 MS. GARCIA: Right.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: He could

         19  have gone directly to the Court of Appeals.

         20                 MS. GARCIA: He could have gone

         21  directly.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: But he went

         23  to the Appellate Division.

         24                 MS. GARCIA: Right.  It's a delay

         25  tactic.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: And that's

          3  where it is today?

          4                 MS. GARCIA: Correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: And has the

          6  Appellate Division given any indication as to when

          7  they're going to act on that appeal?

          8                 MS. GARCIA: No.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: How long

         10  has it been sitting before the Appellate Division?

         11                 MS. GARCIA: We've been heard by the

         12  Appellate Division.  We went  --  we had oral

         13  arguments in October of just last year.  And at this

         14  point, we're waiting for a decision.  We had asked

         15  for them to issue their decision in December.

         16  Before the Governor's State of the State address.

         17  And before his Executive Budget was issued.  And

         18  they have failed to agree to do that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Okay.

         20  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         22  Next, Oliver Koppell and John Liu.  And then we're

         23  going to move the agenda to the next panel.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you.

         25  I'll be quite brief, because Council Member

                                                            25

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  Garodnick actually asked the question I was going to

          3  ask.  So that we're waiting now for the Appellate

          4  Division.  It's been fully briefed and argued.  And

          5  we're just waiting for a decision.  Is that correct?

          6                 MS. PALAST: That's correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Now, in

          8  answer to some  -- to Councilman Lanza's comment, I

          9  have here that the order of Judge DeGrasse is that

         10  the State is to provide $14.08 billion in operating

         11  funds, phased over four years.  I assume that's the

         12  number that we have from the Council report.  Is

         13  that correct?

         14  Just for operating aid, we're talking about.

         15                 MS. GARCIA: It's $5.6 billion

         16  additional for operating aid, $9.2 billion for

         17  capital funding, capital aid.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So those

         19  together come out to the $14 billion.

         20                 MS. GARCIA: Correct.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So in

         22  operating aid, how much should be  --  I assume the

         23  first year that he talked about was the year that

         24  started July 1,2005.  And ended this June 30, 2006.

         25  Correct?
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          2                 MS. GARCIA: Right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So that's the

          4  current fiscal year, the State, for which they've

          5  already adopted a budget without this money.  So how

          6  much was there?  Of the $5 billion in operating aid

          7  you said?

          8                 MS. GARCIA: $5.6.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: $5.6 over

         10  four years.  How much in the first year?  In

         11  operating aid?

         12                 MS. GARCIA: It comes out to $1.15

         13  billion for New York City.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: For each

         15  year?

         16                 MS. GARCIA: For the first year.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And the

         18  second year?

         19                 MS. GARCIA: Would be that plus

         20  another $1.15 (billion)

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: $1.15

         22  (billion).  So it's $2.3.

         23                 MS. GARCIA: It's phased in over four

         24  years.  The first year you get a quarter of that.

         25  The second year you get a quarter and a second
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          2  quarter.  You get half.  The third year, you get

          3  three quarters, and the fourth year, you get the

          4  full amount.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So the State,

          6  since they've already adopted the budget for this

          7  year, --  well, for this fiscal year, it's been

          8  adopted.  It ends in fact, at the end of March. The

          9  State's year.  I gave the wrong date, because I gave

         10  the City's year.  But for the State year ends at the

         11  end of March.  Was the first installment supposed to

         12  be in this fiscal year?  The one we're in now?  Or

         13  was it for the next fiscal year?

         14                 MS. GARCIA: Well, since Judge

         15  DeGrasse issued his order in March, 2005, it would

         16  have been hard for the State to do so I guess, in

         17  time.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So then the

         19  first year is actually the coming year?  The year

         20  that starts April 1?  I want to understand this.

         21                 MS. GARCIA: They're one year behind.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Wait.  They

         23  haven't adopted the budget that starts April 1 yet.

         24  They're considering it right now.  Were they

         25  supposed to come up with the first billion plus by
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          2  now?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes.

          4                 MS. GARCIA: Yes they were.  The State

          5  was given --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Oliver.

          7                 MS. GARCIA: The State was given 90

          8  days to comply.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: That's

         10  correct.

         11                 MS. GARCIA: By the  --  with the

         12  Judge DeGrasse order.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So they're

         14  already a year behind.

         15                 MS. GARCIA: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So they

         17  actually owe us $2.3 billion by the time they pass

         18  the budget as of March 30th.  Right?

         19                 MS. GARCIA: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay.  So

         21  there is a specific number.  I want to make this

         22  clear.  There's a specific number in the law,

         23  whether you think that's adequate or not, that's

         24  where we are right now.  The State owes us $1.15

         25  billion for the year that ends in a month.
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          2  Approximately a month.  And then another $1.15 in

          3  the year that starts.

          4                 MS. GARCIA: And another  --  it's

          5  actually twice that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes.  Well

          7  that's what I'm saying.

          8                 MS. GARCIA: Right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: One for this

         10  year, which ends March 30th.  One for the year that

         11  starts April 1st, and goes for the next year.  And

         12  that's what we're asking for.

         13                 And the only other thing I would say

         14  Mr. Chairman is, I think it is fair, and I know that

         15  I have friends and colleagues in the State

         16  Legislature.  I think it's absolutely fair for this

         17  resolution to be addressed at both the Governor and

         18  State Legislature.  And it is the Legislature that

         19  is as responsible as the Governor in failing to come

         20  up with the money in their budgets, because they

         21  supplement the education budget each year.  And they

         22  supplemented it last year.  They gave us a pittance

         23  more than they had in the year before.  But it's

         24  their responsibility, and I would certainly support

         25  requiring both the Governor and the Legislature to
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          2  come up with this money.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.  And

          4  the last questioner is John Liu.  And then we move

          5  into the next panel.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you Mr.

          7  Chairman.  I'll be efficient.  I just wanted to ask

          8  our experts here from the Campaign for Fiscal

          9  Equity, just a couple of very basic questions.

         10  Primarily to remind everybody what the Campaign for

         11  Fiscal Equity is, and involves.

         12                 My first question is, who are the

         13  plaintiffs, and who are the defendants in this

         14  Campaign for Fiscal Equity?

         15                 MS. GARCIA: The plaintiffs are eight

         16  parents and their children, who we spoke with early

         17  on in our litigation. Among them, Council Member

         18  Robert Jackson.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: As

         20  representatives of parents of all parents with kids

         21  in public schools in New York City.

         22                 MS. GARCIA: Exactly.  So the real

         23  defendants are  --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: And who are the

         25  defendants?
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          2                 MS. GARCIA: The defendants are the

          3  Governor and the --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: The Governor in

          5  concept?

          6                 MS. GARCIA: The Governor.  We

          7  originally filed this case against Governor Cuomo.

          8  And when Pataki took over, the case -- he became the

          9  defendant.  And the other official defendant is the

         10   --  and I'm going to get his title wrong, but he's

         11  the person who is in charge of the finance and

         12  taxation of the State's  -- for the State of New

         13  York.  I'm not sure if his title is Commissioner or

         14  Secretary.  But he's the  --  there are two

         15  defendants in this case.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: And when were the

         17  decision  -- when was the decision handed down on

         18  CFE?  That's in 2003?

         19                 MS. GARCIA: The last decision by the

         20  Court of Appeals was in 2003.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: And who  --

         22  which parties, or who is appealing the decision of

         23  the courts?

         24                 MS. GARCIA: Governor Pataki.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Anybody else?
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          2                 MS. GARCIA: He's the person who

          3  basically dictates what happens with this case.  The

          4  Attorney General's Office represents the Governor.

          5  So I suppose those two bodies are the ones handling

          6  it.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: So Mr. Chairman,

          8  I would submit that to you and our colleagues on

          9  this Committee, that there is absolutely nothing

         10  wrong with, and in fact, I think it's our

         11  responsibility to pass this resolution, just to make

         12  it clear that we are going to hold people

         13  accountable.  Especially if that person is a

         14  governor who continuously files appeals challenging

         15  the decision that the courts have already ruled that

         16  our public school kids are not getting our fair

         17  share.  I hope that we an vote on this quickly,

         18  because it needs to be passed for the simple reason

         19  of sending a strong message, not only to the people

         20  of the City that we care about the school kids, but

         21  to send a strong message to the Governor as well.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you

         23  Council Member. Thank you very much.

         24                 Our next panel is Vivian Farmery, the

         25  Manhattan Borough's representative to the PEP;

                                                            33

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  Richard Barr, School District Three, President of

          3  the President's Council, I believe; and Priscilla

          4  Marco, of Senator Diane Savino's office.

          5                 MS. FARMERY: Good afternoon Chairman

          6  Jackson and Members of the Committee.  Thank you for

          7  allowing me to testify before you today.  My name is

          8  Vivian Farmery, and I am the Manhattan Borough

          9  President Scott Stringer's appointee to the Panel

         10  for Educational Policy.

         11                 Let me begin by saying unequivocally

         12  the Borough President supports Resolution No. 14.

         13  For the second year in a row, Governor Pataki

         14  continues to ignore the court ruling that calls for

         15  the State to provide just under $15 billion in

         16  additional funding for New York City public schools.

         17    The Governor's actions are even more abhorrent in

         18  light of the fact that the State's economy provides

         19  him with the opportunity to finally begin to take

         20  steps to remedy the court's decision.  With a $3

         21  billion surplus, the Governor is in a position to

         22  make a significant down payment on the CFE lawsuit.

         23                 In his proposed Executive Budget for

         24  2006- 2007, the Governor is seeking to fund a tax

         25  credit for working families who opt to send their
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          2  children to private and parochial schools. Instead

          3  of using the State's surplus to ensure that New York

          4  City public school children receive the sound

          5  education guaranteed to them under the State's

          6  constitution, the Governor would prefer to invest

          7  these excess dollars to fund an initiative that is

          8  little more than a back door policy for vouchers.

          9                 Our schools need the down payment,

         10  not the next or the following year, but this year.

         11  In the absence of this funding the construction of

         12  almost two dozen schools and more than 15,000 new

         13  seats are in jeopardy in this financial year alone.

         14  Next fiscal year, 18 new school construction

         15  projects, and over 10,000 new seats are threatened

         16  in the absence of this additional State aid.

         17                 Moreover, hundreds of millions of

         18  dollars of badly needed repair work, and educational

         19  enhancements for our schools, such as libraries,

         20  science labs, and technology, are at risk, unless

         21  additional funding is made available from Albany.

         22                 The Governor is claiming that

         23  proposed Executive Budget provides a record increase

         24  in school aid.  But in reality, if you look at the

         25  numbers, New York City's share of this increased
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          2  State funding would represent a mere one percent

          3  increase over what we received this year.  Moreover,

          4  of the total proposed increase for New York City,

          5  more than a third is slated to cover debt service

          6  costs.

          7                 We need this action now.  The

          8  education of our City's children cannot continue to

          9  be jeopardized because Albany is playing politics.

         10                 I want all of the Members of the City

         11  Council to please know that they can count on the

         12  Borough President Stringer and me to fully support

         13  any initiatives being planned to lobby Albany for

         14  our fair share.  We understand that the next few

         15  weeks are critical in putting pressure on the

         16  Government to make a down payment on CFE and we

         17  stand ready to wage the fight with you. Thank you

         18  very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         20  Please proceed.

         21                 MR. BARR: Good afternoon.  My name is

         22  Richard Barr. I'm Co- chair of the School District

         23  Three President's Council's Political Action

         24  Committee.  District Three is in Manhattan.  And I

         25  wanted to say at the outset that how nice it is to
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          2  see Chairman Jackson and Jan Atwell on his staff,

          3  because having both toiled in the trenches of

          4  education, public education advocacy, it's nice to

          5  see that they're part of the chief oversight

          6  committee of the City's government, in an area that

          7  they know very well.

          8                 I am a delegate from District Three

          9  President's Council to the Chancellor's Parent

         10  Advisory Council, which is a Citywide organization

         11  from all the districts.  And I just want to speak to

         12  clarify something that happened last week, in terms

         13  of CPEC (phonetic) voting not to go to Albany with

         14  the Department of Ed on its annual lobby day, but on

         15  a different day.  As it pertains to CFE, I just want

         16  to make it clear that we favor, as does the Council,

         17  as does the Mayor, as does the Department of

         18  Education, the full funding of the school system in

         19  compliance with the CFE decision.  And we favor this

         20  resolution.  We voted to go a different day because

         21  we don't exactly see some of the issues exactly as

         22  the DOE does.  And I wanted to stipulate that the

         23  parents put together a lobbying position for Albany

         24  on CFE which, unlike the DOE, acknowledges as most

         25  studies have, that the City's share of funding CFE
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          2  should probably be around 20 or 25 percent. Not

          3  nothing as the Mayor and the Chancellor often

          4  assert.

          5                 We also feel that in supporting

          6  things like the School for New York City, Schools

          7  for New York's Future bill, that any under funded

          8  and under performing school district in the State

          9  ought to be eligible for the same solution, and

         10  should be receiving additional funding, just as New

         11  York City's schools should.

         12                 And we feel that the money should

         13  come to the City with certain strings attached.

         14  There should be accountability measures built in,

         15  seeing to it that the priorities identified in the

         16  CFE decision, the chief areas of shortcomings of the

         17  New York City schools, should be addressed by that

         18  money.  And it should not be sent to the Mayor and

         19  to the Department of Education as a blank check to

         20  be spent any way they see fit.

         21                 So that's where our areas of

         22  differences are.  But once again, I reiterate, we,

         23  as you, as the Mayor, as the Chancellor, all favor

         24  the complete, full funding of CFE and any action

         25  necessary by the State, by the Governor, and the
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          2  Legislature to make that happen, and we support this

          3  resolution.  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          5                 MS. MARCO: Good afternoon.  My name

          6  is Priscilla Marco.  I'm here representing State

          7  Senator Diane Savino, Senator for the 23rd district,

          8  which covers the North Shore of Staten Island, as

          9  well as communities in Brooklyn, including the

         10  Sunset Park community.

         11                 Senator Savino wants to support this

         12  resolution to put pressure on the Governor and State

         13  Legislature to fully fund CFE.

         14                 Earlier this month, Governor Pataki

         15  released this preliminary budget.  In it, there is

         16  no mention of the Campaign for Fiscal Equity case,

         17  in which the State of New York was ordered to pay an

         18  additional $5.6 billion in operating funds, and $9.6

         19  billion in capital funding for the New York City

         20  schools.

         21                 Rather than comply with the decision

         22  of our State's highest court, his Administration has

         23  chose instead to waste time and resources in

         24  appealing this decision.

         25                 Because of this continued neglect, 23
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          2  new school projects outlined in the City's Capital

          3  Plan, which would have added 15,381 needed new

          4  seats, will not be built.

          5                 In the North Shore of Staten Island,

          6  in an area that has not seen a new school for over

          7  40 years, two new school projects are on hold until

          8  the State releases it's share of the funding.  We

          9  would have had an Early Childhood Learning Center,

         10  the first of its kind in Staten Island.

         11                 At the vacant PS 44 annex, a K to

         12  Eight school would have added 844 seats, relieving

         13  over crowding in nearby schools such as I.S. 51,

         14  which is now operating at 115 percent of capacity,

         15  and PS 22, now at 120 percent.

         16                 Across the Verrazano Bridge, in the

         17  Brooklyn portion of my district. Sunset Park High

         18  School will continue to be a dream for a community

         19  that's been waiting over 30 years for its own high

         20  school.

         21                 Choosing to ignore this problem will

         22  not make it go away.  Students will continue to

         23  struggle with split schedules, inadequate

         24  facilities, and libraries, and lack of libraries.

         25  And graduation rates will continue to stay low until
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          2  we address the simple fact that we need to invest in

          3  our children's education.

          4                 This continued neglect of our City's

          5  schools, in light of projected $2 billion surplus is

          6  an insult to the thousands of children who must

          7  endure over crowded classrooms, poorly maintained

          8  buildings, and little or no access to gyms, music

          9  programs, or art classes.

         10                 It's an insult to the taxpayers in

         11  New York City, particularly those in under serviced

         12  boroughs such as Staten Island and Brooklyn, who

         13  continue to enrich the State's coffers without

         14  getting much in return.

         15                 When I was elected it was in part in

         16  response to voters' dissatisfaction with the way

         17  things are done in Albany. With, among other things,

         18  the way our budget is decided, and how our tax

         19  dollars are spent.

         20                 As we go into budget negotiations, I

         21  call upon the Governor and the Senate Republicans to

         22  take this into consideration, and to show their

         23  commitment to New York City school children, by

         24  providing $1.8 billion necessary to build these

         25  desperately needed new schools.
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          2                 And I would add that this does not

          3   --  this does not include  --  these are the things

          4  that were already in the capital budget.  It does

          5  not include the fact that on the North Shore of

          6  Staten Island, Curtis High School is at 162 percent

          7  of capacity, and there's a real need for another

          8  high school on the North Shore.

          9                 And I believe Tottenville High

         10  School, which is in Mr. Lanza's area, also is

         11  extremely over crowded.  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 Any questions for this panel?

         15  Council Member Lanza.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Thank you.

         17  This question is for Senator Savino's

         18  representative.  Let me begin by saying that Senator

         19  Savino and I are friends, and we've worked together

         20  on a number of issues involving our shared district,

         21  or our shared borough of Staten Island.

         22                 And my point is this.  As part of the

         23  written testimony, which you have just read, the

         24  Senator calls upon the Governor and the Senate

         25  Republicans to take this into consideration.  Right?
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          2    The Governor and the Senate Republicans. Not the

          3  Senate Democrats, or not the entire State Assembly.

          4  And I think  --  and that underscores the point I'm

          5  trying to make here. Because we ought not mislead

          6  the good folks who are out here, who are true to the

          7  noble cause here, which is to get resources that are

          8  due our children here in New York City.  By

          9  inserting politics into this.  This is not about

         10  politics.  This is about our children.  And that's

         11  what troubles me, Councilman Liu, when you talk

         12  about sending a message to the State.  We ought to

         13  send the right message to the State.  We ought not

         14  send a political message. We ought not take this as

         15  an opportunity to take shots at folks just because

         16  of their political party affiliation.  We ought to

         17  send the entire message.  And the entire message

         18  would be a message that is sent to the entire State

         19  government.

         20                 That we send that message to both

         21  Governor Pataki, and the legislative bodies, which

         22  include the Senate and the Assembly.  Let's not

         23  forget, that the State Legislature does not have to

         24  pass a budget.  They get to vote on the budget.  And

         25  if it doesn't include the money that we're calling
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          2  upon today, if it doesn't include the money that is

          3  due our children, and we feel serious about this,

          4  then they ought not vote.  And I would urge them not

          5  to vote on any budget that does not include that

          6  money.

          7                 So my only point here, Mr. Chair, is

          8  that we take the politics out of this thing, and we

          9  put our children back into it.  And so, I have

         10  proposed an amendment that would not take a single

         11  word, it would not subtract one word from resolution

         12  currently being considered.  Everything that is

         13  there, I would support.  All I'd ask is that we take

         14  politics out, by also including, so that we make

         15  sure we cover all the bases.  If our goal is to get

         16  this money for our children, then I ask that we send

         17  the right message.  Not just any message.  And the

         18  proposed amendment would just add one sentence,

         19  which says, "We also call upon the Assembly Speaker,

         20  Sheldon Silver, and Senate Majority Leader Joseph

         21  Bruno, not to pass a budget that does not comply

         22  with the court order in a Campaign for Fiscal Equity

         23  lawsuit".  And for anyone keeping track, or keeping

         24  score on party affiliations, that would still be,

         25  we'd still be calling upon two Republicans out of
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          2  the three that I just mentioned.

          3                 So that's my point here Councilman,

          4  and that's what I ask that this Committee supports.

          5  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you

          7  Council Member Lanza. And thank you to this panel

          8  for testifying.  We have the next panel, please come

          9  up.  That's Noreen Connell, Lillian Rodriguez Lopez,

         10  Jose Davila, Ellen McHugh, and Betty Holcomb.

         11                 In the interest of allowing everybody

         12  to testify today within a timely and reasonable

         13  fashion, we do need to start asking everybody to

         14  limit their testimony to three minutes.  That's the

         15  only way we can get everybody in at a reasonable

         16  time.  So I want to thank you for your indulgence,

         17  and respect for that matter.            As this

         18  panel is preparing to testify, the following panel

         19  should prepare to come up after this panel is

         20  completed. David Bloomfield, Paulette Dildy, Guita

         21  Ranjbaran, and Elena Mora.

         22                 Ms. Connell, please proceed.  Okay.

         23  Sorry about that.  Ms. Rodriguez- Lopez.

         24                 MS. RODRIGUEZ- LOPEZ: Good afternoon.

         25    The first thing I'd like to say to the City
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          2  Council is a resounding thank you.

          3                 My name is Lillian Rodgriguez- Lopez,

          4  and I'm the Hispanic Federation.  I'm here today in

          5  my role as Chair of New Yorkers for Smaller Classes,

          6  a coalition of advocates, civic organizations,

          7  parent groups, unions, and faith- based

          8  organizations.  I want to thank you, Councilman

          9  Jackson, as well as Members of the Education

         10  Committee and the entire Council for your strongly-

         11  worded resolution, calling on the Governor to

         12  release the long- overdue CFE funds.

         13                 New Yorkers for Smaller Classes

         14  heartily supports this resolution, for because for

         15  too long, City school children have been short

         16  changed.  The Campaign for Fiscal Equity carried

         17  their lawsuit to the State's highest court, and won,

         18  because the Court of Appeals recognized that the

         19  State had failed to provide New York City students

         20  with the opportunity for a sound, basic education.

         21                 One of the major inequities cited by

         22  the court was in the area of class size.  New York

         23  City has, by far, the largest class sizes in the

         24  State.  Ten to 60 percent larger, depending on grade

         25  and subject than those found in schools elsewhere in
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          2  the State.  Smaller class size has been shown to

          3  increase student achievement, improve teacher

          4  attention rates, reduce dropout rates, and

          5  disciplinary problems and boost parental

          6  involvement.

          7                 As many of you know, and I want to

          8  thank also Councilman Liu for all your support over

          9  the last year and a half, New Yorkers for Smaller

         10  Classes conducted a petition drive last Spring in

         11  order to put a Charter Amendment proposal on the

         12  ballot. The proposed Charter Amendment would have

         13  required that a minimum of 25 percent of anticipated

         14  CFE monies be used to lower class sizes in City

         15  schools to levels found in the rest of New York

         16  State.  This amount is modest, given that the court

         17  found that class size was one of the three, the

         18  three major areas where City schools are deficient.

         19                 We launched our Charter Amendment

         20  campaign because we believe that children in New

         21  York City deserve an education that is just as good

         22  as those provided to children, students, who live

         23  elsewhere in New York State.  All those at City's

         24  Corporation Council has declared our proposed

         25  amendment invalid.  We are challenging that
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          2  determination in court, in our lawsuit, Benya versus

          3  Robles (phonetic).

          4                 We're here because we want to say

          5  that we lend or support to this effort.  I want to

          6  mirror that we do also believe that it is not just

          7  the Governor that's responsible for making sure that

          8  the City receives these funds.  But Speaker Silver,

          9  as well as Senator Bruno.  And we want to join with

         10  Members of the City Council in calling on Governor

         11  Pataki and State Legislators to fully fund City

         12  schools by making the down payment now on what they

         13  owe City schools under the CFE settlement.

         14                 The dreams of New York City students

         15  have already been deferred far too long.  So that

         16  concludes my three minutes. Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Thank you.

         18  Perfect timing.

         19                 Mr. Davila.

         20                 MR. DAVILA: Good afternoon Chairman

         21  Jackson, and distinguished members of the City

         22  Council Education Committee. Thank you for allowing

         23  our organization to testify at this very important

         24  hearing on the Campaign for Fiscal Equity lawsuit,

         25  the Governor's failure to comply, and the impact on
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          2  New York City's schools.

          3                 My name is Jose Davila, and I am the

          4  Director of Education Advocacy for the New York

          5  Immigration Coalition.  I am here on behalf of the

          6  City's public school students who come from

          7  immigrant households and the 145,000 students almost

          8  one of seven of all students in New York City

          9  schools whose native language is not English, and

         10  who are classified as English Language Learners.   Today's

         11  immigrant and ELL students have the same goals

         12  previous generations of immigrants, to receive a

         13  high school diploma, and to have access to a higher

         14  education.  But today's immigrant and ELL students

         15  are held accountable to meet increasingly difficult

         16  recent standards, without receiving the help they

         17  need, and which was promised to them.

         18                 The New York Immigration Coalition

         19  supports high standards for all students, including

         20  ELL students.  While academic standards force those

         21  serving our students to work even harder to ensure

         22  they succeed, inappropriate testing tools and

         23  woefully insufficient resources can sabotage

         24  education reform efforts, and do more harm than

         25  good.  We know that when ELL students get the help
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          2  they need, they can succeed.  ELL students who have

          3  learned English and passed the NYSESLAT tests, score

          4  higher on standardized tests, and graduate at higher

          5  rates than all other students, even native English

          6  speakers.  Unfortunately, too many ELL students are

          7  not receiving the additional help they need, and are

          8  dropping out or being pushed out into G.E.D.

          9  Programs.  The sad and shocking result is that over

         10  50.4 percent, over half, of all ELLs in the class of

         11   '01 dropped out of school after seven years.

         12  Failing to stop this ELL and immigrant dropout

         13  crisis will only further contribute to slowing our

         14  City's economy and will leave another generation of

         15  immigrant youth without true opportunity or the

         16  promise of a successful life.

         17                 The Governor's Fiscal Year 2007

         18  Executive Budget has again lumped Limited- English-

         19  Proficient Aid into the Flex Aid funding formula,

         20  and has proposed no ELL- specific funding increase

         21  for the growing ELL population in New York City.

         22  Instead, the Governor's $375 million Sound Basic

         23  Education proposal gives local school districts

         24  unrestricted aid that is not guaranteed to help

         25  ELLs.
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          2                 In the context of the CFE court case,

          3  not only have all New York City students been left

          4  hanging by the lack of a settlement, but ELLs have

          5  been virtually ignored or left out of most CFE

          6  proposals.  The Assembly's School for New York

          7  Future Act goes along with the Governor's

          8  elimination of accepted LEP aid category that would

          9  have ensured the City would spend a fair share of

         10  any funds on ELLs.  This concern is reinforced by

         11  Mayor Bloomberg's August of 2004 proposed CFE

         12  spending plan, which only allocated $124 million of

         13  the $5.3 billion plan for ELLs.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Please wrap up.

         15                 MR. DAVILA: Absolutely.  Even the New

         16  York City Council's recent CFE Commission reports

         17  have also failed to recognize the needs of ELLs in

         18  any serious way by failing to offer any

         19  recommendations.

         20                 In closing, we believe it is

         21  important for the City and State to address New York

         22  City's ELL and immigrant dropout crisis, and to help

         23  ELL students meet our tough graduation standards by

         24  increasing funding both at the City and State

         25  levels, and not to wait for any settlement to reach
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          2  the City, but we need to act now.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you very

          4  much.  Ms. McHugh.

          5                 MS. MCHUGH: Hi.  Good afternoon.  My

          6  name is Ellen McHugh --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Please pull the

          8  mike closer.

          9                 MS. MCHUGH: Of New York State.  In

         10  the interest of brevity, I'm just going to read

         11  what's here.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: It's the soul of

         13  wit.

         14                 MS. MCHUGH: I hope so.  Because

         15  otherwise, I'm not funny.

         16                 A community that may be overlooked or

         17  have its needs deferred includes the community of

         18  students with disabilities at all levels and in all

         19  districts and regions across New York City.

         20                 Currently, students with disabilities

         21  are often shut out of the most ordinary school

         22  activities because of a lack of access to

         23  facilities.  Students with hearing impairments are

         24  excluded from assembly programs because featured

         25  films are not presented with closed captioning.
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          2  Choral and musical programs are not presented with

          3  the simple use of an FM system such as those

          4  commonly used in New York City theaters and movie

          5  houses.  Students who use wheelchairs are often

          6  unable to attend classes because door sills have not

          7  been modified to provide access for the wheelchair.

          8  Schools with pools, and granted there are not many,

          9  have not installed lifts that would allow a

         10  physically disabled child to use the pool.

         11            In the past, students with disabilities

         12  have been routinely denied access to play yards and

         13  gyms.  If students with disabilities are given the

         14  opportunity to participate in after school and

         15  Summer programs, these same programs may be

         16  artificially truncated by staff that are unfamiliar

         17  with proper protocol and methodology for including

         18  all students.

         19                 This year's Summer school program was

         20  artificially truncated for students with special

         21  education by three weeks, because the Office of

         22  Student Activities, under Martin Oesterreich didn't

         23  realize that students with disabilities were

         24  entitled to a full program.

         25                 Students at high school levels have
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          2  been actively discouraged from applying to new,

          3  smaller high schools, because these schools do not

          4  have the capacity to create small, that is

          5  12- to- one classrooms for students with learning

          6  disabilities. Reasons given for these active

          7  discouragements from the Board of Education include

          8  the following: We are not physically accessible;

          9  creating new schools is so confusing that we do not

         10  encourage students with disabilities to apply until

         11  the school is open for two or more years, a direct

         12  violation of civil rights; the lack of appropriate

         13  equipment for students.  Accessible bathrooms, or

         14  computer stations or lab stations.

         15                 A lack of updated and accessible

         16  facilities prevents students from participating with

         17  their age- appropriate peers in general education

         18  classrooms and activities, and creates separate and

         19  segregated sites for students with disabilities.

         20  This segregation has been cited by both the federal

         21  and New York State Departments of Education and

         22  could possibly cost the City lost funding.

         23                 Our students with disabilities are

         24  often without appropriate gym activities because of

         25  a lack of properly trained staff.  And in addition,
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          2  principals, aware of the Federal IDEA, Individuals

          3  with Disabilities Education Act mandate to include

          4  students with their age- appropriate peers in

          5  schools as close to home as possible, are often left

          6  without the resources for adapted equipment and

          7  books that are appropriately  --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Please wrap up.

          9                 MS. MCHUGH: --  Modified for students

         10  with disabilities.

         11                 The current backlog in the provision

         12  of Related Services is only exacerbated by the lack

         13  of appropriate space and privacy to conduct these

         14  much needed, and legally mandated service.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you very

         16  much.  Ms. Holcomb.

         17                 MS. HOLCOMB: My name is Betty

         18  Holcomb.  I'm with Child Care, Inc.  I'm testifying

         19  here today largely because we helped to write and

         20  plan the early education part of the CFE

         21  Commission's Report on how to invest the CFE money

         22  once we get it.

         23                 And we hope we will all get it soon.

         24                 Child Care Inc. Joins the parents,

         25  advocates, and policy makers here today in calling
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          2  for an immediate settlement of the CFE lawsuit, to

          3  assure that every child in New York has access to a

          4  sound, basic education.  We believe that State

          5  officials, including the Governor and the

          6  Legislature, can act now in the current budget,

          7  without waiting for more activity in the court. New

          8  resources can, and must be earmarked in the current

          9  budget to see that every child has access to a

         10  sound, basic education.  The children have already

         11  waited too long.  As Mr. Jackson can attest.

         12                 As advocates for early care and

         13  education, we're particularly concerned about

         14  funding for early education.  We filed a friend- of-

         15  the- court brief in the CFE case, as co- conveners

         16  of the Center for Early Care and Education, on

         17  behalf of young children who are already missing out

         18  on preschool and other high- quality early learning

         19  opportunities.

         20                 The research shows the State can make

         21  no better educational investment than one in the

         22  early years.  In the first five years of life, the

         23  brain is rapidly growing, laying down the hard

         24  wiring, if you will, trillions of pathways, which

         25  set the stage for language, reasoning, and social
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          2  skills.  The preschool years offer a particularly

          3  rich window for development, a time when literacy

          4  blooms.  Researchers have found that children

          5  exposed to rich learning environment in the early

          6  years have a huge advantage over peer who do not

          7  have such an advantage.  One team of researchers

          8  uncovered what they called the "early catastrophe",

          9  a 30- million word gap among children who miss out

         10  on early learning opportunities, compared to peers

         11  lucky enough to have them.

         12                 Other research shows that children

         13  who lack a preschool experience start out up to two

         14  years behind their peers and are unlikely to ever

         15  catch up.

         16                 You can read the rest of my

         17  testimony, which basically underscores that

         18  argument, but one other point I'd like to make is

         19  that the cost of not doing this are so expensive, as

         20  I'm sure Noreen Connell will point out.  It costs so

         21  much to try to remediate what kids miss out on

         22  later.  And too many of them never catch up.  And

         23  too many of them aren't graduating high school as

         24  things stand now.

         25                 So we fully support the Council in
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          2  its resolution that it's calling for.  And in

          3  pressing as hard and as loudly, and as often as we

          4  can to get this CFE money now.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 Our final witness for this panel is

          8  Noreen Connell. And as she finishes her testimony,

          9  I'd ask the next panel as called previously, to

         10  prepare to testify. Ms. Connell.

         11                 MS. CONNELL: Since January, 2001, the

         12  Governor, through a constant series of legal

         13  maneuvers, has delayed implementing the court's

         14  order in the Campaign for Fiscal Equity lawsuit.  He

         15  now proposes to provide $500 in refundable tax

         16  credits to families with incomes below $90,000 in

         17  school districts with under performing schools.  The

         18  cost estimate is $400 million annually.

         19                 EPP cannot think of any other tax

         20  credit that is premised on the failure of government

         21  to perform its function.  If part of the State's

         22  road system was in disrepair, should a governor

         23  simply provide a refundable tax credit to low-

         24  income and moderate income motorists for their

         25  troubles?  Wouldn't it be the first order of
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          2  business for the State to fix its schools?

          3  Shouldn't it be the first order of business for the

          4  State to fix its schools?

          5                 When over a third of New York City's

          6  entering ninth graders never graduate, isn't the

          7  real cost of each family closer to $20,000 to

          8  $30,000 a year in lost income from a job earner?

          9  And where are the tax credits for employers who have

         10  difficulty finding skilled workers?  Is this a $500

         11  problem for them?

         12                 The failure of the State to provide a

         13  sound, basic education for all of its children has

         14  had vast social and economic costs.  This tax credit

         15  proposal trivializes this problem.  On another

         16  level, it also trivializes government, as outlined

         17  by our State's constitution.  It's a statement that

         18  says," here's a discount.  We haven't done our job".

         19

         20                 Now EPP has an immediate solution to

         21  an urgent problem.  We're proud to support City

         22  Council Resolution No. 14, calling on the Governor

         23  to fulfill his constitutional duty by complying with

         24  the court order and the CFE lawsuit.  But we believe

         25  that the State Legislature must also be called upon
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          2  to take emergency action to keep the City's Capital

          3  Plan for the schools moving forward.

          4                 EEP's recommendation to the New York

          5  State Legislature is to reject the Governor's

          6  proposal to provide $400 million in tax credits for

          7  an adequate education in New York City and other

          8  high- needs school districts, and to redirect the

          9  $400 million to a New York State School Building

         10  Reserve Fund, to pay principal and interest costs

         11  for building new schools, building additions and

         12  leases that are capitalized.  And it would be for

         13  any district with severe student over crowding

         14  problems, any district with a lack of building

         15  capacity to reduce class sizes to the averages for

         16  the State, and any district that wants to expand pre

         17  Kindergarten programs.

         18                 This $400 million would allow the

         19  State to borrow $2.8 billion for the construction of

         20  new schools.  If an additional $400 million were

         21  provided to the School Building Reserve Fund in

         22  Fiscal Year 2007/'08, and increased by the same

         23  amount for each of the next three years, in other

         24  words, a five- year plan, the problems of student

         25  over crowding and large class sizes in New York City
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          2  will be completely solved in five years.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 MS. CONNELL: I have more details

          6  here.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes. We do have a

          8  complete copy of your written testimony.  And it's

          9  very informative.

         10                 I just have a quick question for you,

         11  which is that this so- called plan that's been put

         12  forth by Governor Pataki, to give back the tax

         13  credits.  Is that   --  does that tie in at all with

         14  the court- mandated decision?

         15                 MS. CONNELL: It's sort of bizarre,

         16  because if there were other tax credits, lets say

         17  you could up the deduction for a child on State

         18  income taxes, any broad- based tax program would be

         19  good.  But this one is bizarre, because in the 81

         20  school districts that would benefit, parents would

         21  bet a $500 refundable tax credit. But, if the

         22  schools got better, they would then lose the tax

         23  credit.  I've never heard of an incentive provided

         24   -- I've heard of other tax credits, but I've never

         25  heard of an incentive provided so the schools
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          2  perform poorly.  So you could imagine in the future,

          3  every district would keep one low- performing school

          4  going so that they would continue to get the  --

          5  parents would continue to get the $500.  So there's

          6  got to be a restructuring of this tax credit. I

          7  think they're very serious, for philosophical

          8  reasons, for making a lot of things into tax credits

          9  et cetera.

         10                 But this is truly unworkable.  You

         11  cannot provide taxpayers an incentive for failing

         12  schools.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: It ensures

         14  mediocrity.

         15                 MS. CONNELL: It's bizarre.  Yes,

         16  absolutely.  You've absolutely made sure that there

         17  has to be a poor school in New York City.  So that

         18  the taxpayers would get that $500  --  I've never

         19  heard of anything so weird.  And in some of the

         20  other districts, there's only one failing school.

         21  So if the school gets off the SUR (phonetic) list,

         22  or the Needs Improvement list, then the taxpayers

         23  don't get the $500 tax refund.  I mean, it's

         24  bizarre.  Never heard of anything so strange.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you.
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          2  Thank you very much for your time this afternoon.

          3                 I'd like to call the next panel up.

          4  David Bloomfield, Paulette Dildy, Guita Ranjbaran,

          5  and Elan Mora.  Please proceed to the witness table.

          6    And as they are preparing, I'd like to give notice

          7  to the next panel to prepare to testify.  Marion

          8  Bell and son, Harold Roberts.  Mike Lupinacci,

          9  Jeremy Laufer, and Zakiyah Ansari.

         10                 Again, we ask all witnesses to keep

         11  your testimony within the three- minute limit, so

         12  that we can hear from all people today in a

         13  reasonable time fashion.  Mr. Bloomfield, please

         14  proceed.

         15                 MR. BLOOMFIELD: Thank you for this

         16  opportunity.  I come to you today wearing several

         17  hats.  I'm the head of Educational Leadership at

         18  Brooklyn College, where I teach aspiring school and

         19  district leaders.  In my personal capacity, I am the

         20  Region Ten Parent Representative on the Citywide

         21  Council on High Schools, and the parent of a New

         22  York City public high school student.  In all of

         23  these roles, I bring one message: The State must

         24  comply with the CFE court order, funding New York

         25  City's public schools at adequate levels and in a
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          2  manner that makes up for the State's past and

          3  present unconstitutional conduct.

          4                 The bottom line is not dollars.  It

          5  is our children's education.  Our high schools

          6  continue to fall short.  We have just had news of a

          7  decrease in our four- year graduation rate, which

          8  hovers at about 50 percent.  Less than a fifth of

          9  seniors receive a Regents diploma.  Fewer than one

         10  in ten African- American and Latino seniors meet

         11  that standard, and these figures do not include

         12  those who have dropped out earlier.  Soon, this will

         13  be the only standard for graduation.  No more local

         14  diplomas.  No more 55 as a passing score.  And these

         15  are not high standards.  They are minimum standards.

         16    We need action from the Governor now to correct

         17  this failure.

         18                 As you may know, I have been critical

         19  of the Mayor's small school initiative, especially

         20  when small schools displace thousands of students

         21  from large high schools.  These students, often the

         22  most at risk of dropping out, children in need of

         23  special educational services, and English language

         24  learners, move on to the remaining, now even more

         25  over crowded, large schools, flooding them with

                                                            64

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  kids, then cops.  This effect, though, arises mostly

          3  from a lack of adequate space in which to house

          4  small and large high schools alike.  The court-

          5  ordered CFE remedy would alleviate this problem by

          6  adding significant new funds to our Capital Plan,

          7  permitting purchase of land and construction

          8  consistent with a sound high school education.

          9                 That education must include lower

         10  class size and lighter teacher course loads so that

         11  students learn to write and analyze in a manner

         12  consistent with  21st century citizenship and

         13  employment.  Students should read and write

         14  scientific and mathematical analysis, essays,

         15  fiction, poetry, history, journalism.  They need to

         16  be sophisticated in media literacy, financial

         17  literacy, scientific literacy, technological

         18  literacy, and current affairs.

         19                 The Regents standards are

         20  unambiguous.  Our students must acquire facility

         21  with languages; be able to express clear,

         22  independent thought in multiple disciplines; and be

         23  able to determine fact from fantasy.

         24                 We must bring excellence to all high

         25  school students, including special interventions to
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          2  students with disabilities, and English Language

          3  Learners who remain among our most ignored

          4  populations.  Quality instruction is the birthright

          5  of all students, and so, like you, I support City

          6  Council

          7  Resolution No. 14A, and I call on the Governor to

          8  comply with the court order in Campaign for Fiscal

          9  Equity.  Thank you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you very

         11  much.  Ms. Dildy.

         12                 MS. DILDY: Good afternoon.  My name

         13  is Paulette Dildy, and I want to first of all say

         14  that there is a big help for us all coming now, with

         15  Jan Atwell working with Mr. Jackson.  I feel that

         16  after 32 years as a parent leader, I have nine

         17  children, 15 grand, which some of my grand are still

         18    --  I'm raising.  Some are on their way to public

         19  schools.  That we're going to get the help we need.

         20                 I'm presently at PS 37 as a Child

         21  Home Representative.  As I've explained, I've been

         22  32 years in as a parent leader.  I've seen the worst

         23  and I've seen the best.  I have two children, most

         24  concern are for, that are reading disabled. That are

         25  being taught on the floor of a closet.  I have one
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          2  that's speech defect, and he's in a classroom.  I

          3  see the improvement, but how can a child get a

          4  broad- minded way of education on the floor of a

          5  closet?  Five little children on their knees.  And

          6  he talks to me often about being afraid that these

          7  big, tall bookcases are going to fall over on him.

          8                 I think that the tactic should be

          9  more so blamed for any harm coming to these

         10  children.  Because right now, that's endangering the

         11  welfare of a child.  To put them and force them on

         12  the closet, even Randy Weingarten was concerned

         13  about those dirty little rugs that they have to sit

         14  on.

         15                 I have another child that's being

         16  taught in a classroom that's no bigger than an

         17  average bathroom.  As a matter of fact, our school

         18  bathrooms are larger.  We have Kindergarten children

         19  that are left over.  We have eight graders in math,

         20  that in 2001, 70 percent were on Level Two.  And in

         21  2004, 60 percent are on Level Two.  None on Level

         22  Four, only two children going to specialized high

         23  schools.  And indivigent (sic) service is just

         24  something that you just hear about and it never

         25  comes.
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          2                 Pataki made a statement once, that

          3  all New York City public school children need is an

          4  eighth grade education.  And to me it appears that

          5  he felt this very much so, by putting most of his

          6  money in Upstate prisons.  Our children deserve a

          7  lot more than that.  And the way he's looking at our

          8  children is that they're just only directed in one

          9  direction.  But don't blame those little children,

         10  because every household doesn't have a teacher, or

         11  doctor, or lawyer as a parent.  And they're

         12  struggling in a school, and it's a shame.

         13                 As I came up in school, my parents

         14  didn't have to buy crayons, and paper, and soap and

         15  tissue.  I mean, that's all a little bit of what

         16  they need now.  Parents got to get together and try

         17  to find some money for academic services.  Because

         18  if we're going to continue like this, this

         19  generation of children are going be failing.  There

         20  won't be any doctors in the future.  There won't be

         21  any lawyers.  Because how are they going to get out

         22  of school to go on to college when I have my little

         23  boy, who has now been possible hold- over three

         24  times.  He'd be 30 years old graduating from high

         25  school, if he's held over.  But it was a luck of an
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          2  IEP that's modifying this criteria and giving him

          3  extra services.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you very

          5  much, Ms. Dildy. Ms. Ranjbaran.

          6                 MS. RANJBARAN: My name is Guita

          7  Ranjbaran.  I am a parent in District Six.  And I'm

          8  here just to share, give you a glimpse of what a

          9  school looks like.  And that is Miscota (phonetic)

         10  New School.

         11                 We share problems similar to many

         12  City schools, which has to do with the space and

         13  over crowding.  Two of our two three classes have 28

         14  kids, and the teacher is relieved when a few kids

         15  are absent because they are sick.  And that is in

         16  itself, very sick, because the teacher really loves

         17  the kids.

         18                 Shared spaces, we don't have enough.

         19  We share space with another K to Eight school in the

         20  same building.  And that means --  we are K to Five

         21   --  that means they get more because they are K to

         22  Eight.  We don't get enough time in the gymnasium.

         23  We don't have much access to it.  We don't have

         24  access to the shared auditorium, because they have a

         25  music program and we don't. So therefore, the drama
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          2  teacher often ends up doing rehearsals in the

          3  hallways.

          4                 The Dance and Movement teacher does

          5  the classes in the hallways.  We have cubby rooms

          6  that is used as resource room. Three of our

          7  teachers, ELL, use the cubby rooms, the closets, as

          8  classroom.  And another corner in the library is

          9  used as resource room.

         10                 In the cafeteria, we have 15 minutes,

         11  two groups of kids, who have to line up, eat, and

         12  clean up, in 15 minutes.  No wonder a lot of them

         13  come back to the classroom hungry.

         14                 The building was built on top of a

         15  gas station, which was never cleaned up.  We have

         16  many kids who are developing allergies and asthma.

         17  And like many other schools, parents who can,

         18  contribute to make ends meet.

         19                 But Miscota has a specific issue, and

         20  that is its isolation within a district that is

         21  itself, very isolated, it seems to me.  We are the

         22  only K to Five progressive school in that district

         23  with no prospects for continuity in progressive

         24  education for our kids.  And as we find out, we

         25  historically had the option of crossing district to
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          2  other progressive education networks schools, penny

          3  networks, that would take our kids.  Now, Chancellor

          4  Klein has closed the boundaries, the district

          5  boundaries, and we can no longer cross districts.

          6  And we have appealed to Senator Schneiderman,

          7  Councilmen Martinez and Jackson, who all have tried

          8  to help us, but we haven't been able to open a

          9  dialogue.

         10                 It seems to me that --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Please wrap up.

         12                 MS. RANJBARAN: -- That there are two

         13  Region Tens. One for District Five and Three, and

         14  one for District Six.  And it's very ironic that

         15  District Six, that was the birthplace of CFE,

         16  remains as the most isolated.  We have disparities

         17  within the districts of the same region.

         18                 And just to wrap up,  --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes.  We do get

         20  the picture that you're presenting us with.  So

         21  thank you very much.  I want to thank you for your

         22  time this afternoon.  I apologize.  We do have many

         23  witnesses to get through.  Is Elana Mora here?

         24                 I'd then like to ask the next panel

         25  to come to the witness table.  Marion Bell and her
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          2  son, Harold Roberts; Mike Lupinacci; Jeremy Laufer;

          3  and Zakiyah Ansari.

          4                 After this panel testifies, the next

          5  panel should prepare to give their testimony.

          6  Consisting of three students from Harry S. Truman

          7  High School.  Daena Shearei, Carolyn Johnson, and

          8  Violet Richardson.  You're up next.

          9                 Harold, you can come sit at the

         10  table.  Ms. Bell, please proceed.

         11                 MS. BELL: The New York City School

         12  system is documented as one of the most segregated

         13  systems in the nation, and within our City, that

         14  segregation is still designated by red line

         15  districting and according to the housing.  And the

         16  children are sent to their zone schools.  And then

         17  the No Child Left Behind Act shuttles children from

         18  one school to the other, usually after the budget

         19  money that follows them would go to the next school.

         20  And the school they travel to is still pretty much

         21  just as segregated and inequipped (sic) you know,

         22  for them.  And usually over crowded, due to the

         23  faulty utilization formulas that decide that closets

         24  are classrooms.

         25                 And how long do we tolerate this
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          2  inequity?  How do we break the cycle of stamp paid

          3  the Bill of Rights?  How do we make it right?  We

          4  pass this resolution that the City Council is

          5  proposing.

          6                 And children are herded like cattle

          7  from one room to another, eating lunch at 10:15, so

          8  then desks are too small, and chairs too short, with

          9  rat turds resting on your ledges and shelves, while

         10  the stench of dead mice destroy what's left of your

         11  sanity, self- respect.  And children's last asthma-

         12  free breath.

         13                 This is our daily battle in East

         14  Harlem.  Teachers work miracles.  We keep children

         15  safe and healthy despite the separate and unequal,

         16  deplorable health condition, often followed by

         17  choruses of "sorry, you can't take that book home to

         18  write in or study".  Or, "I'm sorry, there isn't

         19  enough time to help you. Maybe later".  It's as

         20  though they are the science lab experiment to see if

         21  we will survive.  Parents and teachers would prefer

         22  that the students conduct the experiments with

         23  adequate materials.  More than two weeks before the

         24  test, if at all.

         25                 We rightfully demand the standards of
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          2  excellence are high, but where are the supplies and

          3  facilities?  I teach in two of the middle schools.

          4  How long can our children afford to wait?  Not long.

          5

          6                 MR. ROBERTS: The seemingly purposeful

          7  miseducation and systematic delay of generations

          8  over geographical regions for children, and thus,

          9  dismantling their economic future of families is as

         10  much of a crime as segregated buses and lynching or

         11  forced excommunication of people from Louisiana who

         12  were victims, and lying about the 9- 11 fallout air

         13  we breathe.  Moreover, we may be denying this nation

         14  geniuses yet unbirthed.

         15                 MS. BELL: As we nobly exhale words of

         16  redemption and justification, and righteousness into

         17  a system that has been financially raped and abusive

         18  to the minds of American children, how long do we

         19  tolerate inequity?  Appeal after appeal.  No longer.

         20  And we sign this resolution now.

         21                 Innovative alliances and corporate

         22  adoptions are many of the resources schools have

         23  tapped into.  Welcome the Good Samaritans.  But

         24  where, oh where, are our tax dollars going if only

         25  private dollars are being sent to the rescue?
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          2  Privatization is not the answer, and the war on

          3  poverty begins here, with a single mind. And while

          4  we wage battles abroad, and increase the stocks of

          5  weapon companies, we ensure the slow death of people

          6  without an adequate education to compete and

          7  maintain the basic hope which is the necessity of

          8  life.

          9                 We have to be able to change the

         10  condition and sign this resolution.  And shame on us

         11  if we can't earn the daisies that our civil rights

         12  leaders are pushing up through their graves, to give

         13  us the right to dream, so that we can hold on to the

         14  ideals of this nation, and dedicate ourselves to

         15  reminding people that we still have a lot to

         16  overcome for our children, and for our America.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Ms. Bell, please

         18  wrap up.

         19                 MS. BELL: I'm wrapped.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Harold, do you

         21  have anything to add?

         22                 MR. ROBERTS: It's said to be a crime

         23  of neglect to keep your child out of school, and

         24  prevent them from getting an education.  But are

         25  they getting the best one in the conditions I
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          2  described?  We are forced to participate in the

          3  charade, but let this testimony serve as a contract

          4  that I will hold on to the ideals of this nation,

          5  dedicating myself to reminding people that we still

          6  have much to overcome for our children.  For our

          7  America. We are going to have to synchronize our

          8  watches and decide how long is long enough.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you Ms.

         10  Bell.  Thank you Harold.  Mr. Lupinacci.  You've got

         11  a tough act to follow.

         12                 MR. LUPINACCI: I know.  I'm not going

         13  to try and compete with that.  He wins.  Hands down.

         14    And I have some thoughts to offer that are very

         15  similar to Harold, right.  I have some thoughts to

         16  offer that are right along the same lines as

         17  Harold's.

         18                 My name is Mike Lupinacci.  I was a

         19  high school teacher for 12 years.  I taught math,

         20  philosophy, and film.  And I was an elementary

         21  school principal for two years.  So I've worked pre-

         22  K through 12.  And I'm just here to offer a little

         23  bit of perspective.  And then to offer some help if

         24  I can do that.

         25                 One out of every 264 people that live
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          2  in the United States is a New York City public

          3  school student.  In Illinois, they use third- grade

          4  reading scores to determine how many prisons to

          5  build.  In Texas and Florida, they use fourth and

          6  second grade. And in New York, the trends are really

          7  not that different.  I mean, if we looked at our

          8  reading scores, and then we looked at how many kids

          9  wound up incarcerated, we would see a pretty strong

         10  correlation.

         11                 For every school in New York City

         12  where there's an 80 percent or higher graduation

         13  rate, and there are plenty of them, there are

         14  schools that have 20 and 30 percent graduation

         15  rates.

         16                 We routinely break State law in most

         17  of our schools, because students don't have the

         18  required number of physical education classes per

         19  week. And then we read a series, like in the New

         20  York Times, where they talk about Diabetes II

         21  epidemic, and how it's exploding.

         22                 What I'd like to say actually goes

         23  along with what Harold is talking about, is that we

         24  require parents by law to send their kids to school.

         25    We know that some of the schools we send our kids
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          2  to are, I would say, abusive and neglectful.  And I

          3  only say that because I've worked in them.  I've

          4  seen it first hand.  I've spent 14 years in schools.

          5    I've seen some really good ones.  I've seen some

          6  really bad ones.  I worked in a school where a

          7  student threw a chair out a fourth- floor window and

          8  missed one of my teachers by two feet.  Had the

          9  chair fallen two feet in the other direction,

         10  everybody in this room would have heard about it.

         11  But because it missed her, nobody talks about it.

         12  Nothing happened as a result of that, and by time

         13  that teacher got to my office to talk to me about

         14  it, she was hyperventilating so badly she couldn't

         15  even talk about it.

         16                 I was a principal in an elementary

         17  school.  We shared that building with older

         18  students.  And we require parents by law  --  here's

         19  a perspective I'm offering.  We require parents by

         20  law to send their kids into environments that we

         21  know are abusive.  And I don't see how we can do

         22  that any longer.  So, what I'm  --  a friend of mine

         23  asked me tomorrow to come help her out, talk to her

         24  principal for her fifth grader who has been beaten

         25  up three times in the past ten days.  So I'm going
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          2  to go help represent her.

          3                 What I'm saying to you, is in the

          4  21st century, we --  it's not just a moral thing to

          5  do, it's in our self interest to improve schools.  I

          6  think there's a lot of things that we can do,

          7  including restructuring our school.  It doesn't

          8  necessarily require additional money, we can do that

          9  now.  And I'm offering you my time and service in

         10  any way that I can possibly help.  Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you very

         13  much Mr. Lupinacci.  Mr. Laufer.  If you'd like you

         14  can  --  that's fine. I guess we can see you from

         15  here.

         16                 MR. LAUFER: I just wanted to make a

         17  point, not to read anything or  --

         18                 I'd like to preface my testimony by

         19  saying, although I am speaking about Community

         20  District Seven, I by no means mean to suggest that

         21  our community is more worthy of funding than any

         22  other community.

         23                 Mr. Chairman, Members of the Council,

         24  members of the public, and colleagues, good

         25  afternoon.  My name is Jeremy Laufer. And for the
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          2  past six years, I have been District Manager of

          3  Community Board Seven in Brooklyn, serving Sunset

          4  Park and Windsor Terrace, a district without a

          5  public high school.  Prior to that, I worked for

          6  City Council for six years.  I am a product of New

          7  York City schools, PS 206, W. Arthur Cunningham Jr.

          8  High School, and Edward R. Murrow High School.  I

          9  also had the good fortune that both my parents were

         10  public high school teachers.

         11                 I'm here to speak today about the

         12  greatest need of our community in Sunset Park and

         13  Windsor Terrace, the construction of a high school

         14  for the students of our community.

         15                 Sunset Park High School has been a

         16  dream and a necessity in our community since before

         17  I was born.  It has been viewed as a necessity by

         18  the City as well, as evidenced by the 1969 budget I

         19  keep behind my desk at work, which shows $14.7

         20  million for what was then called North Kings High

         21  School.  That money was removed from the budget in

         22  the mid- 70s, due to the City's fiscal crisis.  By

         23  contrast, the high school that I attend, Murrow,

         24  which was then called North Central High School, is

         25  in the same plan, without any money allocated.  But
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          2  somehow, that school was built in the mid- 70s.

          3                 In 2000, money was again placed in

          4  the Capital budget for a Sunset Park high school.  A

          5  site on 37th Street was chosen, and the community

          6  was very excited.  However, that money was removed

          7  from the budget in 2003, due to more than $2 billion

          8  in SCA cost over runs at projects all across the

          9  City.  In 2004, money was again placed in the budget

         10  for a Sunset Park High School.  A site was chosen

         11  and purchased, environmental studies were completed,

         12  and the school was designed.  We expect construction

         13  to begin this Spring, for a 1,650 seat school, to

         14  open in September, 2008.

         15            In December we learned through the media

         16  that this school may once again be in jeopardy,

         17  thanks to the intransigence on the State's part in

         18  funding the mandates stemming from the court

         19  decision of Campaign for Equity law suit.  Members

         20  of the Council, on behalf of more than 120,000

         21  residents of Community District Seven, we implore

         22  you to do everything in your power to ensure that

         23  this school is fully funded and built on time.

         24                 Since our Community District's Board

         25  has changed between 1970 and 1980, a fair assessment
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          2  of our community's population must use 1980 as a

          3  baseline.  The 1980 census shows our district with a

          4  population of almost 99,000.  In 1990, the

          5  population grew by about four percent.  By 2000, the

          6  population had grown to more than 120,000, a 20

          7  percent increase from 1980.  By contrast, the

          8  proposed school  --  I'll be very quick  --  the

          9  proposed school, in 1969, was for 4,000 students,

         10  whereas today's school calls for 1,650.  If you do

         11  the math, it's a 60 percent decrease in seats, it's

         12  a 600 percent increase in cost, and it's a

         13  population increase of more than 20 percent.

         14                 I just want to refer to the board

         15  behind me.  If I could skip down in my testimony,

         16  this is the result of a public hearing that we had

         17  two weeks ago.  Each piece of paper on this

         18  represents an idea from children in our community

         19  for our public high school.  More than 500 people

         20  attended that town hall meeting. Which is something

         21  I have never seen in my eight years in this

         22  community.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you for the

         24  vivid example. Ms. Ansari.

         25                 MS. ANSARI: Good afternoon.  I would
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          2  just like to say, before I testify that I think we

          3  here, sitting here, have given the most respect, and

          4  as I sit here with my colleagues, all I see is

          5  talking amongst you, people getting up.  And I think

          6  it's just something that needed to be said.  Or

          7  people reading or looking at their phones.  That

          8  we're here giving our respect, and we deserve the

          9  same respect as we're sitting here testifying.

         10                 So having said that, good afternoon.

         11  My name is Zakiya Ansari.  I am the mother of eight

         12  children, ranging in age from five to 19 years of

         13  age.  All of whom are currently, or have been in the

         14  public school system.  I am also a proud member of

         15  BEC, the Brooklyn Education Collaborative.

         16                 BEC is a collaborative of two unions,

         17  1199 child care fund, UFT, two grass roots

         18  organizations, CHAFE, which is Cypress Hills

         19  Advocates for Education, ACORN, and NYU Institute

         20  for Education and Social Policy.  We came together

         21  about two years ago to improve the schools in our

         22  BEC learning zone, Districts 18, 19, and 23.  While

         23  we have an extensive K to 12 platform, we decided to

         24  focus on Middle Schools.  At the time, there seemed

         25  to be an initiative for elementary and high schools.
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          2                 We are calling for middle grade

          3  education that recognizes the unique developmental

          4  and academic needs of middle grade students, and

          5  meets these needs through a rigorous and engaging

          6  academic program, extracurricular activities that

          7  capture their interests, experienced educators and

          8  administrators, support for staff and students, and

          9  adequate resources.

         10                 At BEC, we have had many success.  I

         11  think our greatest success is that we have empowered

         12  and brought knowledge to parents and communities of

         13  inequities that are going on within their school

         14  communities, and we have all come to work together.

         15  We've had rallies of over 300- plus people,

         16  including parents, teachers, students, and

         17  community.  We also worked for over a year with the

         18  DoE to get science equipment within our BEC schools

         19  that didn't have, and of last week, some of our

         20  schools were receiving them.

         21                 While this is great news for our

         22  children and teachers, you cannot begin to

         23  understand how hard a fight it took to get these

         24  supplies.  Unfortunately, the equipment was given

         25  for one science classroom per school.  In some of
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          2  our schools, they have as much as eleven science

          3  classrooms.  While ever little bit helps, this 16

          4  microscopes for schools like that won't go very far.

          5  CFE money would be a tremendous help.  As BEC, this

          6  is just the beginning.  We, as parents, community,

          7  and advocates for children, we want to see art,

          8  music, health, and gym, just to name a few in our

          9  schools.

         10                 The world seems to listen to

         11  statistics, so in a preliminary survey we did of 33

         12  schools in our BEC learning zone, 26 offer no

         13  Regents level science courses.  Eighteen offer no

         14  health education.  Seventeen had no science labs,

         15  despite a section of the eighth grade science exams

         16  that test lab skills.  Fifteen offer no music

         17  classes.  Nine have no gym or art.  Where's the

         18  equity?

         19                 In Eastern Brooklyn schools, without

         20  science labs, only 26 percent of the eighth graders

         21  passed.  Schools with labs, only 40 percent passed.

         22  A 15 percent difference.  This may not seem like a

         23  big difference to some, but talk to the parents who

         24  have children in those schools.  If compared

         25  Citywide, there a 30 percent gap between our
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          2  schools.  I repeat.  Where's the equity?

          3                 In conclusion, the four Senators from

          4  New York City, Senators Padavan, Maltese, Golden,

          5  and Marchi, should be ashamed of the way they are

          6  treating our kids.  And they should be penalized for

          7  not complying with the court order.  If I didn't

          8  abide by a court order, I would be fined or thrown

          9  in jail.  What message are we sending to our

         10  children?  Is it that they aren't' worth the money?

         11  We need CFE.  Give us the money.  Thank you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 I want to thank the panelists for

         15  joining us today. We have a question from Council

         16  Member Lanza.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Yes.  Thank

         18  you.  Ms. Ansari, I'm just curious.  Why is your

         19  comments directed at only four of the many State

         20  Senators that serve in New York City?  That's

         21  Senator Marchi, by the way, served for 50 years.

         22  Padavan, Maltese, and Golden.  Why did you single

         23  those four out?

         24                 MS. ANSARI: For no particular reason.

         25    But you know --  I don't know.  I'm going to say

                                                            86

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  that I feel offended only because I am not a

          3  politician, but I do hear statistics and things like

          4  that.  But in the same breath, I feel that maybe

          5  there is an injustice on just naming four people, so

          6  just to make it fair, if you're not part of the

          7  solution, then you're part of the problem. So if

          8  there are Senators and Councilmen and Assembly

          9  people who are not for giving CFE monies to us, then

         10  I will rephrase it if that makes any difference.  I

         11  really don't think it does.  Because if you're not

         12  helping, then you're part of the problem.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Well, that's

         14  refreshing.  I'm glad you said that, but you might

         15  not be a politician, but you know your politics.

         16  Those are the only four Republican Senators that

         17  serve in the City of New York, and again, it just

         18  underscores my problem here.  Your last comment, I

         19  think, is right on the money. That we ought to send

         20  the right message, and we should not be  -- we

         21  should not fall down this slope of politicizing this

         22  event.  Our children are far too important to be

         23  politicizing this.  This is not about  --  and it

         24  should not be, in my opinion, about just criticizing

         25  folks depending on their party.  The entire State
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          2  Legislature, the Assembly and the Senate, controls

          3  the purse string here.  So look, I'm not backing

          4  away as a Republican from calling upon the Governor

          5  to give us the assistance that we need.  I'm not

          6  backing away from that.  But we ought to make sure

          7  that we're not using our parents and our children

          8  here as political pawns.  They deserve more.  And if

          9  we're serious about getting the money, then we ought

         10  to be calling upon all those parties who have the

         11  authority to do something about that.  And it goes

         12  well beyond just naming the four Republicans, and we

         13  heard prior testimony, where we had a State Senator

         14  calling upon the Governor and the State Senate

         15  Republicans, not even the other half of the body,

         16  and not the Assembly.  So I just  --  and I'm sorry

         17  to belabor this, but I think it's important.  Our

         18  kids are too important.  Education is too important.

         19    Let's take the politics out of this.  Let's come

         20  together as the great City we are, and let's call

         21  upon those who have the power to do something about

         22  this.  All of the folks who have the power to do

         23  something about this.

         24                 MS. ANSARI: Can I just say that I

         25  agree with you, but since other people, and that
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          2  goes for politicians, are not taking the politics

          3  out of education.  We, as parents, have to call it

          4  what it is.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Isn't it true

          6  that the Assembly has put up a proposal for how to

          7  fund education, their own CFE proposal?  But has the

          8  State Senate done that?

          9                 MR. LAUFER: The State Assembly can do

         10  something very simple.  They can refuse to vote

         11   "yes" on a budget that does not include  --  in

         12  fact, they could circumvent  --  excuse me.  Excuse

         13  me.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Council Member

         15  Lanza.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: I'm sorry.

         17                 MR. LAUFER: I'm answering your

         18  question.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Right.

         20                 MR. LAUFER: So if you didn't want the

         21  answer, you shouldn't have asked the question.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: But I just

         23  wanted to clarify --

         24                 MR. LAUFER: No.  I'm giving you the

         25  answer to your question.  Directly.  If the State
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          2  Assembly, the State Assembly could circumvent this

          3  entire process.  They can go around the whole court

          4  process here, and they can simply put the money in

          5  the budget, and solve the whole problem.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: But they did

          7  put a proposal up for a new funding formula for

          8  schools.  Whereas, I don't think the Senate did.  So

          9  I think the Assembly did come up with a formal, but

         10  the Senate --

         11                 MR. LAUFER: The Assembly voted for a

         12  budget that did not include the money that our kids

         13  deserve.  And what I'm saying, and if you care about

         14  getting the money, as opposed to just playing

         15  politics, you should be calling upon the Assembly,

         16  as I am, not to vote for a budget that does not

         17  include the money that you and I both want, I

         18  believe, for our kids.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: But as a

         20  principle  --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you Council

         22  Member Lanza. Council Member Gallagher has the

         23  floor.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Yes.

         25  Excuse me.  If you could just turn off the
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          2  microphone for a second.

          3                 Let me start by saying that I

          4  represent a district that's the number one

          5  overcrowded school district in the City of New York.

          6    And I have children who are waiting for high

          7  schools, and waiting for expansions on their

          8  elementary schools.  I have a K to Eight that

          9  doesn't have science labs, doesn't have a gymnasium,

         10  and doesn't have a lot.  And it's unfortunate.

         11  Those kids haven't decided if they're going to be

         12  Democrats or Republicans.  Those kids understand

         13  that they don't have what's necessary, and what is

         14  due to them.  What's troubled me about a lot of the

         15  testimony here is, I represent a district as a

         16  Republican, in Senator Maltese's district.  I

         17  support CFE.  I support the State's need to get that

         18  money down to the City so we can build the high

         19  school that was supposed to be on Metropolitan

         20  Avenue, the extension of Public School 113, the

         21  extension at 128, the extension at PS 13, the

         22  extension at PS 49.  All of those are important

         23  things to be done.

         24                 But I think everybody does themselves

         25  a disservice when they take it to this political
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          2  extreme, that you want to blame four Republican

          3  Senators, or as Senator Savino's staff member

          4  indicated, that only the Senate Republicans, whether

          5  they be from Downstate or Upstate, are the ones that

          6  should share the responsibility.  Or the Governor.

          7  If the State Assembly and the State Assembly both

          8  vote on the budget, I want to call on both of them

          9  not to adopt a budget unless the CFE funds are here

         10  for the City of New York.

         11                 And the partisan political attacks

         12  that came today are unnecessary, and I think, like

         13  the young woman who spoke before had indicated, that

         14  she doesn't know if they were Republicans, I don't

         15  think she knew if they were Republicans or Democrats

         16  that were there, but that's what the news report

         17  said.  And that's what the stories are.  And that's

         18  what advocates have been saying. That's the problem.

         19

         20                 I'm a Republican.  I'm proud to

         21  support CFE.  My colleague, Andy Lanza is the same.

         22  We also want to call on the Democrats that are up on

         23  the State level, and the Republicans, to finally

         24  make a stand.  Do not endorse a budget, do not

         25  support a budget unless CFE funding is there.
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          2                 And I call upon the advocates to go

          3  out to all elected representatives, whether they be

          4  Democrats or Republicans, and announce to them they

          5  should not adopt a budget until CFE funding is in

          6  the budget for the City of New York.  Thank you.

          7                 MR. LUPINACCI: As a principal of a

          8  school  --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Mr. Lubinacci.

         10  Mr. Lubinacci. We have many people to hear from

         11  today.  Thank you very much for your comments

         12  Council Member Gallagher.

         13                 This panel is excused.  We will now

         14  bring up the following panel.  Daena Shearei,

         15  Carolyn Johnson, and Violet Richardson.  Please

         16  proceed.

         17                 Thank you.  We're very happy you

         18  could join us this afternoon from Harry S. Truman

         19  High School.  Ms. Shaerei, do you want to go first?

         20                 MS. SHEAREI: Sure, sure.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Go ahead.  Please

         22  proceed.

         23                 MS. JOHNSON: My name is Carolyn

         24  Johnson, I'm here today because Truman is concerned

         25  with the opening of all the small school.  The large
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          2  schools are being neglected.  And we are just asking

          3  that the large schools, like, receive the

          4  appropriate funding they need to support their

          5  students.

          6                 MS. RICHARDSON: Hi.  My name is

          7  Violet Richardson. It is understood that most of the

          8  money will be going to the smaller schools.  This

          9  isn't fair for two reasons.  The first is, new small

         10  schools recruit better performing students, leaving

         11  the not- so- advanced students to go to the larger

         12  schools.  Funding is needed to suit their needs,

         13  because they need to at least get up to the level as

         14  the other schools are.

         15                 The second is this.  The special

         16  education is increasing.  Especially in my school.

         17  We need the money to help suit the special needs of

         18  these students, giving them the education they need

         19  and deserve.

         20                 MS. SHEAREI: Hello.  My name Daena

         21  Sheaver.  As my classmates just stated, that there

         22  are a lot of special ed students that have needs,

         23  and these needs cannot be met without attention. And

         24  because the school is lacking funding, we cannot

         25  provide the attention for the students that are
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          2  considered special ed.

          3                 We have six programs which we cannot

          4  maintain without funding, and because of this, the

          5  students cannot excel with these projects.  The

          6  programs that we have are law, culinary arts, media

          7  arts, junior ROTC, engineering, and business.  These

          8  are only offered to ninth graders, because that's

          9  the amount of the little amount of funding that we

         10  have.  We cannot offer these programs to all the

         11  grades.

         12                 We believe that large schools should

         13  not be overlooked.  We should have the same

         14  treatment as the smaller schools, and we should have

         15  an equal share in the funding that the government

         16  has decided to send out.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Do you wish to

         18  add to what these testi  --

         19                 MS. SIMMONS: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Please proceed

         21  briefly.

         22                 MS. SIMMONS: My name wasn't called

         23  with the girls. So I thank you.  I asked to come up

         24  with them since we're all representing Truman High

         25  School.
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          2                 I thank you for hearing the testimony

          3  of these young ladies on the student body.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Please identify

          5  yourself for the record.

          6                 MS. SIMMONS: My name is Robin

          7  Simmons.  And I'm a parent, a concerned parent.  My

          8  son attends Truman High School. While we're here

          9  representing Truman High School in Coop City in the

         10  Bronx, Region Two, District 11, I believe that I'm

         11  also representing all large high schools in New York

         12  City.

         13                 We thank you for having the Governor

         14  move as quickly as he can on this resolution.  Now

         15  I'm here representing all of the students and the

         16  large high schools in the City, and to me, it

         17  doesn't matter whether you're Republican,

         18  Democratic, or Independent, my goal here is to open

         19  up a forum where you can further understand why we

         20  need these funds, so that our children in the large

         21  schools can be educated to grow up and be free, and

         22  educated to vote, however they decide to vote.

         23                 The situation in the schools,

         24  especially Truman, is that with the opening of all

         25  these new smaller schools, we're afraid that the
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          2  large schools may be overlooked in this budgeting.

          3  We have issues where the statistics are showing that

          4  the large school's special education student numbers

          5  have doubled and tripled.  And the same is true for

          6  the English Language Learner program.  The students

          7   --  we have many, many students that are graduating

          8  through eight grade, but they're reading at levels

          9  one and two.  That means that they're going into

         10  ninth grade with fourth and fifth- grade levels.

         11  And most of those students are being placed in the

         12  large high schools.  They've being forgotten about.

         13                 That is also the issue with a lot of

         14  the special education students.  We feel that the

         15  system is failing those students, because they could

         16  make proper use, and better use of placing those

         17  students with special needs in many of the smaller

         18  schools, where they could get better attention.

         19                 At Truman High School, the number of

         20  students was about 3,500 or so last year.  This

         21  year, and extra 1,000 students have been added to

         22  the roster.  Now what that's done is created split

         23  schedules.  As for instance, my son has a schedule

         24  one through seven.  He has no lunch period.  There's

         25  no lunch.  So if the children cannot eat, and if the
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          2  children don't have proper gyms, and if they can't

          3  get into the school, it takes them a good half hour

          4  to get into the school.  How can they be educated.

          5                 So please.  We're asking that the

          6  large schools are also thought of highly, and highly

          7  considered in the funding that we're asking for the

          8  Governor to appropriate to the City.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 Yes. Quick question.   Council Member

         12  Lanza from Staten Island.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Thank you

         14  Chairman.  I just want to thank this panel.  And I

         15  want to underscore your message for my colleagues as

         16  we enter a new budget process.  What you've said, I

         17  think is so true, that we need to be very, very

         18  careful as government, that we don't use artificial

         19  parameters, or mechanisms to decide where money

         20  goes.  That it ought to be based on need. And I

         21  think you've done a wonderful job driving that point

         22  home today.  And it's something that we will

         23  remember as we go into this budget process now.  We

         24  have a responsibility to make sure that we get the

         25  funds where they're most needed.  So thank you very,
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          2  very much.

          3                 MS. JOHNSON: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And young

          5  ladies, thank you for coming in.  It's always good

          6  to hear from students that are directly in the

          7  schools, and from their parents.  So thank you very

          8  much for coming in.

          9                 Okay.  Next we will hear from Randi

         10  Weingarten, the President of the United Federation

         11  of Teachers.  Is Randi Weingarten here?  Okay.

         12  There she goes.

         13                 And let me just say to all of you

         14  here, you know I disappeared for about, I guess

         15  about an hour.  Let me apologize. The Mayor held a

         16  press conference on CFE.  And you know, I was part

         17  of that press conference along with Randi

         18  Weingarten.  And the bottom line of it all is that

         19  all of us are on the same page, as far as CFE, and

         20  getting the monies that we're entitled to.  So I

         21  apologize for my absence.  Randi Weingarten.

         22                 MS. WEINGARTEN: So I am delighted to

         23  be testifying at Chairman Jackson's first hearing.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Can you pull the

         25  mike up a little bit more?
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          2                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  --  First hearing on

          3  education.  I said I am delighted that I am

          4  testifying and I moved mountains, not snow

          5  mountains, but I've moved mountains to be able to be

          6  here today, because I had other things scheduled.

          7                 We just  --  look.  This is a race

          8  now.  And you have a State budget that has over a $2

          9  billion surplus, and you have a case that's been

         10  ongoing for the entire cycle of somebody's

         11  education, K through 12, pretty soon it's going to

         12  be pre- K through 12, and you have a total inability

         13  in Albany to focus on making this a priority.

         14  That's the magnitude of what's going on here. And I

         15  can go through, and my testimony does, go through

         16  lots and lots of reasons why there's warning signs,

         17  what we need in terms of schooling.  But the bottom

         18  line is, and I just want to go through it this way,

         19  this year, when there could be a down payment in

         20  terms of CFE, there is not.  And instead, and I just

         21  met this morning, I just met this morning with

         22  Bishop Marzio, and I know there several struggling

         23  parochial schools, just l like there are several

         24  struggling Jewish schools.  I met with the head of

         25  Agudis (phonetic) Israel.
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          2                 What I am very afraid of is that the

          3  Governor, rather than funding a down payment for

          4  CFE, is trying to pit parents of public school

          5  children against parents of private and parochial

          6  school children, instead of helping all children.

          7  And we can help all children in the context of CFE.

          8  There are ways to do it.  We can do it.  And we

          9  should all be working together on ensuring the

         10  diversity of our education system, and ensuring that

         11  all children, whether they go to private, parochial,

         12  or public schools, get a decent education.

         13                 So let me just throw out a few things

         14  that cost some money, but could be funded this year.

         15    Take pre- K education.  Right now, we call it

         16  universal pre- K, but in reality, less than half of

         17  New York City's 100,000 four- year olds attend pre-

         18  K education, and those for only half a day.

         19  Everyone, the research is unanimous in this, there

         20  are corporate CEOs calling for this.  The national

         21  governors have called for this.  I don't anyone who

         22  does not believe that pre- K should be priority for

         23  school districts.

         24  And yet, this year, pre- K  enrollment has fallen,

         25  not risen.
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          2                 So what could you do?  If we had $300

          3  million  -- remember, the budget surplus up in

          4  Albany is over $2 billion, and rising.  Three

          5  hundred million dollars, right now, could provide

          6  full- day pre- K to every four- year old in the

          7  City.  Every four- year old full- day pre- K.

          8                 And I could go on and on with other

          9  issues.  Take school safety.  There is a law called

         10  SAVE.  But the promise to ensure that every kid is

         11  educated in an environment that is non disruptive

         12  and every teacher has the ability to ensure that all

         13  the kids that want to be in school have a decent

         14  education, that law is an empty promise.  For

         15  example, there are no functioning, fully staffed

         16  SAVE rooms in all of Manhattan.  You can call them

         17  SAVE room, you can call the "time out" rooms.

         18  Students who have assaulted or threatened teachers

         19  often return to the same teacher's classroom within

         20  hours.

         21                 Why do I raise this one today?

         22  Because last night, in between all the e- mails

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: They're trying

         24  to make some adjustments.  I asked them to raise the

         25  volume up overall so that it's  --
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          2                 MS. WEINGARTEN: Is it better?  Okay.

          3                 I raised it because in between all

          4  the e- mails I got last night about why schools were

          5  being opened today, was an e- mail from a teacher

          6  who was sobbing to me in the e- mail about how a

          7  student who had just assaulted her, was still in her

          8  classroom.

          9                 If we had less than $200 million, if

         10  you had $170 million, you could solve virtually all

         11  of the school safety problems in the City of New

         12  York.  We could double the school security officers,

         13  we could do what Council Member Avella was talking

         14  about last year, about installing an update security

         15  cameras and classroom communication system.  We

         16  could do all of that.

         17            And take one more.  Every large high

         18  school in the City but two is still beyond its

         19  official capacity.  That crowding accounts for many

         20  of the incendiary encounters that plague our most

         21  dangerous schools.  Only 204 new seats have been

         22  created so far this year.  One eighth the rate from

         23  last year.  And down from 22,267 in Fiscal '03.

         24                 So the press conference that Council

         25  Member Jackson and I just attended with the Mayor
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          2  was simply this:  The Mayor, in this instance, with

          3  Speaker Miller, last year and the Council said, we

          4  will front some money for CFE.  To get the capital

          5  construction going.  There is no excuse why Albany

          6  is not matching that capital money and going forward

          7  with it.  We need the 15,000 seats that we are about

          8  to lose if 21 school buildings don't get built.  We

          9  need those science labs desperately, if we want to

         10  help all high school students pass a Regents.  And

         11  all eighth grade students get the minimum science

         12  requirements that they need.

         13                 We need the playgrounds and the gyms,

         14  if we want to help all kids in New York City fight

         15  obesity.  And fight diabetes. And fight asthma.

         16                 So I raise just these three issues

         17  because we now see a real cause and affect when we

         18  don't get money for these kind of accountable

         19  investments, where you can take it, you can say it

         20  has to be used for this, you count it, there's

         21  transparency.  When we don't get that, we short

         22  change our kids.  And that is the Governor and

         23  Albany's failure for not funding CFE.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: President

         25  Weingarten, let me thank you for coming and giving
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          2  testimony.  I know that we were working together on

          3  this particular matter, and we were all standing

          4  with Mayor Bloomberg and the Chancellor, and the

          5  Speaker, Christine Quinn, so it seems as though

          6  we're all on the same page, that our children are

          7  entitled to the money.

          8                 Let me just open up.  Any questions

          9  from my colleagues?  Questions.  Well I want to

         10  thank you for coming and giving testimony, and thank

         11  you for participating and supporting this

         12  resolution.

         13                 MS. WEINGARTEN: My testimony talks a

         14  lot about class size and the other issues, but I

         15  figured you didn't need more than what I just said.

         16  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Our next panel

         18  is Dr. Luis Reyes, from the Coalition for

         19  Educational Excellence for English Language

         20  Learners; Caitlin Ervin, from Cypress Hills

         21  Advocates for Education; and Sonal Patel, the

         22  Director of Immigration Rights Project Advocates for

         23  Children.  And there are three individuals, and I'm

         24  going to ask only one representative speak, and so

         25  you're going to have to decide which one, from the

                                                            105

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  Grass Roots Literacy Coalition.  So either Pedro or

          3  Ryan, or Calvin.  I'm going to ask please, your

          4  indulgence in asking one of you to speak on behalf

          5  of the group.  So can one of you decide that?  If

          6  you don't mind. Help me out.  Thank you.  I

          7  appreciate that.  All right.

          8                 So Dr. Luis Reyes first.  Caitlin

          9  Ervin, from Cypress Hill Advocates for Education,

         10  Sonal Patel, from the Director of the Immigration

         11  Rights Projects Advocates for Children, and we have

         12  three individuals, and one is going to speak.  We

         13  have Pedro Fulgencio, from the Grassroots Literacy

         14  Coalition, and Ryan Springer, from the Grassroots

         15  Literacy Coalition, and Calvin Miles. So Dr. Reyes,

         16  please.

         17                 DR. REYES: Good afternoon Mr.

         18  Jackson. Thank you and the Council for the

         19  opportunity.

         20                 In 1993, I was a member of the Board

         21  of Education when this case began, and you were a

         22  plaintiff.  And the children of the kindergarten

         23  class in 1993 have reached since then, either

         24  graduation or drop out, or GED.  And we know from

         25  the statistics, that at best, 50 percent of those,
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          2  half of those children, just counting from the ninth

          3  grade on, graduated.  One of the reasons for that is

          4  the lack of funding.  And the lack of resources that

          5  went along with the new standards that the Regents

          6  put in place at the end of  --  the beginning of

          7  1990.  So we have seen a 13, 15 years of higher

          8  standards.  But not higher funding commensurate.

          9                 I'm here representing the Coalition

         10  for Educational Excellence for English Language

         11  Learners.  And I want to make a point, I've given

         12  out some  --  a handout along with a sheet.  I want

         13  to take note of the one- page sheet, which is that

         14  this Administration is pushing for charter schools

         15  as part of the solution.  And I want you to note

         16  that the City has put resources of the Board's

         17  budget, the Department's budget, for charter

         18  schools.  However, the group of students that I'm

         19  speaking on behalf of, English Language Learners,

         20  who make up 14 percent of the school system, as of

         21  last year, made up two percent of the charter

         22  school.

         23                 Of the 32 charter schools that were

         24  created, and that were in existence as of last year,

         25  23 of them had zero ELL students.  Two others had
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          2  one or two students.  If you look at the Regents,

          3  four of the nine regions that are shown, had zero

          4  ELL students.

          5                 And so, the question is, if we're

          6  going to use the few public dollars that we have, we

          7  have to ensure that there is equity.  Equity of

          8  access.

          9                 While Latino and African- American

         10  children are well represented, immigrant children,

         11  English Language Learners are not. And the same

         12  holds in the small high schools.  Another part of

         13  the education reform of the district.

         14                 I would ask you to focus on the same

         15  set of criteria that the New York Immigration

         16  Coalition, and that is, that we need funds not only

         17  for Capital Budgets for creating spaces, whether

         18  they're small or large, but also intensive

         19  instruction after school, and extended day on

         20  Saturdays Summer School to ensure that students who

         21  are English Language Learners, who need more time,

         22  more time in the day, more time in the year, have

         23  the extra, because it costs teacher time.  Teacher

         24  salaries, to have those programs.

         25                 Smaller class size, especially for
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          2  students who come to the United States from another

          3  country, who have not had the benefit of schooling

          4  at their age level and are behind two, three years.

          5  They may be a 15- year old, but they're a fifth

          6  grade reader at best.  And therefore, they need that

          7  intensive smaller class.

          8                 We have a problem in finding enough

          9  bilingual teachers and ESL teachers.  This is on top

         10  of the math and the sign shortage.  It is usually

         11  not noted but in fact, it is an acute shortage, and

         12  therefore, I call upon you to look at the CFE which

         13  I support, the law suit and the remedy, and your

         14  Intro on this law suit.   I would ask that there be

         15  a LEP aide, a Limited English Proficiency Aide,

         16  which is separated out, so that we know that these

         17  students are covered and that we can track where the

         18  money goes, so that schools don't take dollars that

         19  are generated by these students, and then keep them

         20  out of charter schools, keep them out of the small

         21  schools, and fail to provide them the services that

         22  they have a legal right to.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Caitlin Ervin,

         24  from Cypress Hills Advocates for Education.

         25                 MS. ERVIN:  Yes.  Hi.  I'm here on
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          2  behalf of Cypress Hills Advocates for Education, a

          3  group of parents and residents in Cypress Hills,

          4  Brooklyn, who work to improve the quality of

          5  education.

          6                 CHAFE has always been concerned with

          7  school over crowding.  One example is that over half

          8  of the students at one of our elementary schools are

          9  bused to another community.  Our kindergarten,

         10  first, and second graders are all bused out, and the

         11  school only goes to fifth grade.

         12                 CHAFE has fought for many things over

         13  the years, but is most proud of its successful

         14  campaign to be included in the Department of

         15  Education's 2005- 2009 Capital Plan.  A school for

         16  Cypress Hills was not included in the first draft,

         17  and the community really mobilized, collecting

         18  signatures on petitions, meeting and lobbying

         19  elective officials, and challenging the Department

         20  of Education statistics that were used to determine

         21  that we didn't need a school.

         22                 In the end, two schools over all were

         23  added to the plan, and one of them was a 630 seat K

         24  through eighth grade school for Cypress Hills.

         25  Mayor Bloomberg came out to a community to announce
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          2  the new school, and congratulate CHAFE for yelling

          3  and screaming and not going away until it go the

          4  community what it needed.

          5                 CHAFE has been involved in all phases

          6  of planning for the new school.  We found the site

          7  the SCA ultimately selected, and we've had a

          8  representative on the design team, which is usually

          9  just SCA personnel and DoE officials.  Members

         10  researched school design, and met with an architect

         11  as the  developed their vision for the new school.

         12                 And this past October, CHAFE held a

         13  community forum, where Region Five came out showing

         14  drawings, pre- schematics of the school.  Kind of

         15  got everyone really excited, responded to questions.

         16    And now, CHAFE finds itself in a position to have

         17  to fight for the school all over again.  This

         18  project cannot be delayed.  Just as the Sunset Park

         19  representative was saying, we also feel for the

         20  other 23 communities who's new schools are cut.

         21                 Our students attend schools where

         22  play space is taken up by portable classrooms.  And

         23  five- year olds go to kindergarten in unfamiliar

         24  communities.  And every classroom is over crowded.

         25                 The community of Cypress Hills and
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          2  the students there, as well as all the students in

          3  New York City deserve this school, and we hope that

          4  funding will not be delayed.  CFE would obviously

          5  help with that.  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I want to thank

          7  you for coming in.  The next speaker was Sonal

          8  Patel, the Director of Immigration Rights Project

          9  Advocates for Children.

         10                 MS. PATEL: Good afternoon.  My name

         11  is Sonal Patel. I'm the Director of the Immigrants

         12  Student's Rights Project, Advocates for Children, as

         13  well as a staff attorney.

         14                 I just want to highlight one issue,

         15  and I probably won't take the full three minutes.

         16  The two most at- risk populations in New York City

         17  right now are English Language Learner students,

         18  which my colleague, Dr. Reyes has spoken about, as

         19  well as Jose Davila and the New York Immigration

         20  Coalition.  And students with disabilities, who also

         21  did receive some attention here today.

         22                 What we see happen with these

         23  students is that they are the most over-

         24  represented, in the most over crowded, under

         25  performing, and most dangerous schools throughout
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          2  New York City. As a result, often times because

          3  services are not available for these students, these

          4  students are completely denied the opportunity to

          5  attend high school.  We've seen thousands and

          6  thousands of students over the past few years be

          7  completely pushed out of high school, referred to

          8  GED programs, and not provided their constitutional

          9  right to an education.

         10                 The funds that we're talking about

         11  here will not only assist the students who are

         12  currently in school and permitted to attend school,

         13  but will also go in some direction to ensuring that

         14  students are not denied completely, and education,

         15  which does happen primarily in communities where

         16  schools are over crowded, where we've seen students,

         17  hundreds of students, be warehoused in auditoriums,

         18  taught in cafeterias, without text books, without

         19  any substantive instruction for a sound, basic

         20  education.

         21                 And so, the key is again, not only to

         22  provide an education, to provide materials, and to

         23  provide qualified teachers, but to really assure

         24  that every child in the City is allowed to get an

         25  education, which is not currently happening.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you for

          3  coming in.

          4                 Chancellor will be testifying in

          5  about five to ten minutes, so those who want to hear

          6  what he has to say, I urge you to stick around.

          7                 Our next  --  who is going to speak

          8  on behalf of the Grassroot Literacy Coalition?  Just

          9  introduce yourself if you don't mind.  Pull the mike

         10  up a little closer.

         11                 MR. MILES:  Thank you Councilman

         12  Jackson.  And thank the panel for giving us this

         13  opportunity to speak to you about some things that

         14  really touch our heart more than I think it touch a

         15  lot of peoples here, because I think we are some of

         16  the victims of the lack of funding in those schools.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.  Could you

         18  just identify yourself if you don't mind.

         19                 MR. MILES: My name is Calvin Miles.

         20  I'm the Co Chair of the Grassroot Coalition.  The

         21  Grassroot Coalition is a group of peoples from all

         22  walks of life from parents, teachers,

         23  administrators.  Anyone who want to be a part of the

         24  coalition.

         25                 We are here to represent adult
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          2  literacy in this community, because we feel that if

          3  you fund one, you've go to fund them all. You just

          4  can't fund one educational source, unless you fund

          5  them all, because I think it really affects the

          6  family, more so than it affects anyone, because when

          7  the kids can't read and write, nine times out of

          8  ten, the parents have some of the same issues.  So

          9  we don't fund the whole family.  We fund groups of

         10  peoples in the family.  We need to fund all

         11  education.  Period.

         12                 And we need to go to Albany.  You are

         13  absolutely right.  We need to claim no one who is

         14  responsible.  All of us are responsible.  If we do

         15  not get funded for our education bills, to help our

         16  kids and help our community, we might as well leave

         17  and go someplace else, because we've go some serious

         18  issue in our City.

         19                 We need to start thinking about we

         20  can help our people to be able to get a good

         21  education, and help our community to grow and

         22  function, because if I can't read, and go to the

         23  drug store and get my food, and get my medicine, the

         24  drug store can't even get my money from me because

         25  I'm scared to go into the store.             So it's
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          2  just not  funding one source of education, we have

          3  to fund them all, because I'm here to tell you now,

          4  we don't do that.  We're going to be failing.

          5                 We also need to support this adult

          6  literacy bill of Rights.  That's a right for

          7  everybody in the City of New York who wants to go to

          8  school to have a right to go to school.  We know in

          9  the hospital throughout New York State, you have a

         10  Patients Right Bill, so the coalition is really

         11  pushing to have the student, adult literacy student

         12  have a right for an education.

         13                 And those are one of the things that

         14  we are really pushing.  We are hoping that you can

         15  come to our rally that we're going to having here,

         16  and our press conference on the 16th of February.

         17  At 4:30.  We hope to have the community down here,

         18  where we can be able to let peoples know how crucial

         19  this is in our community.

         20                 And not just our children.  Sure, our

         21  children is very important.  But we have to have our

         22  parents to help out with kids to be a big better

         23  person about a citizen in this country.

         24  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: We want to thank
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          2  you.  Clearly, without a doubt, adult literacy is

          3  extremely important in our communities and in New

          4  York City.  But as you know, the CFE resolution, and

          5  CFE law suit was about the children.

          6                 But I don't disagree with you that we

          7  cannot only educate our children, we have to educate

          8  the entire family.  The resolution is about the CFE

          9  law suit and the law suit addresses basically, K to

         10  12 education.  Adult education is extremely

         11  important.

         12                 MR. MILES: We need to change it.  We

         13  need to start looking at all education.  Stop

         14  looking at it individually, because I think we're

         15  failing ourselves when we do that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Good.  Well I

         17  want to thank you all for coming in.  I appreciate

         18  it.  And understand, as I said before, this is part

         19  of a process and this resolution is just one step in

         20  the direction in order to ensure that we bring down

         21  the money from Albany.

         22                 So I want to thank you all for

         23  participating and being patient as far as waiting to

         24  be heard.  Thank you very much.

         25                 Our next panel, while we're waiting
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          2  for the Chancellor, is Kathleen Gomez, a parent from

          3  District One, from AQE; April Humphrey, Alliance for

          4  Quality Education; Charles Jordan, the President of

          5  the United Parents Associations of New York City;

          6  and Leoni Haimson, Class Size Matters.

          7                 Kathleen Gomez.  Please.  Go ahead.

          8                 MS. GOMEZ: Yes.  Hello.  Thank you

          9  for inviting me to testify.  I am a parent of two

         10  children.  One in the first grade, and one in sixth

         11  grade.  I'm also a Board Member of the Alliance for

         12  Quality of Education.

         13                 The main reason I got involved in

         14  education was my oldest son was in a class of 36

         15  kids and more throughout his elementary history, and

         16  where I have been told he should be tested for ADD,

         17  because he asks too many questions.  So that just

         18  starts out my reason for doing this.

         19                 The legacy, it has been over two and

         20  a half years since the highest court ordered Albany

         21  law makers to fix the school funding system.  It has

         22  been 18 months since the July, 2004 deadline law

         23  makers were given to come up with a solution.  So

         24  they have done nothing.  The legacy of the past 18

         25  months should not be forgotten.  In the past 18
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          2  months, 35 percent of New York students dropped out

          3  or failed to graduate on time.  This includes over

          4  50 percent of students in the mini- cities and over

          5  20 percent of students in our rural counties.

          6                 In the past 18 months, less than one-

          7  third of our high school graduates were prepared to

          8  actually succeed in college. Despite consistent

          9  evidence that smaller classes produce better

         10  results, especially for younger students, we have

         11  made minimal progress.  In many cases, class sizes

         12  have actually increased.

         13                 Pre- kindergarten programs produce

         14  lower drop out rates, more years of a completed

         15  education, and less likelihood of involvement with

         16  crime.  Despite these facts, three- quarters of New

         17  York's four- year olds have been denied access to

         18  public pre- K programs these past 18 months.

         19                 Strong, consistent evidence

         20  demonstrates that after school programs, which

         21  include tutoring, enrichment, recreational

         22  activities improves student achievement and reduce

         23  youth crime. Despite this fact, over 600,000 New

         24  York students have remained largely unsupervised

         25  after school for the past 18 months.
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          2                 Increases in teacher quality are

          3  directly correlated with improvements in student

          4  achievement.  Ten percent of our teachers have left

          5  the profession in the past 18 months, and over 50

          6  percent of teachers leave the profession in the

          7  first five years.  In the past 18 months, teacher

          8  turnover has cost New York schools $316 million.

          9                 Due to the inaction in the past 18

         10  months, there are 23 New York City schools slated to

         11  provide classrooms for 15,381 students next year,

         12  that will not be built.  The annual debt service for

         13  the construction of these classrooms would only be

         14  $250 million.

         15                 In the past 18 months, many of our

         16  students have been allowed to convene in classrooms

         17  in old and disintegrating buildings, to be taught

         18  academic subjects in gymnasiums, and to attend

         19  schools with no libraries.  To be responsible for

         20  passing Regents science lab exams without access to

         21  science labs, and to prepare for life in the 21st

         22  century with outdated text books and no access to

         23  computers.

         24                 I would like to finalize by saying,

         25  as a first of 77 million baby boomers look to
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          2  retire, who is going to be our tax base in the

          3  future?  Will the students of today be engineers,

          4  architects, and mathematicians?  With good paying

          5  jobs?  Or will they be working for minimum wages,

          6  servicing other countries like China?  Will they be

          7  able to contribute to Social Security Medicare?  Or

          8  will these programs be bankrupt?

          9                 An entire generation of kids have

         10  gone through a broken education system set up to

         11  fail.  Let's not short change another generation.

         12  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         14  Leonie Haimson, from Class Size Matters.

         15                 MS. HAIMSON: Hi.  Thanks for inviting

         16  me here today. And I'm so pleased to see Robert

         17  Jackson as the Chair of the New York City Council

         18  Education Committee.  We're all so thrilled.

         19                 Our schools desperately need the

         20  additional funding that the court ordered in the CFE

         21  case if we're ever going to provide our kids with a

         22  better chance to learn.  As the Court of Appeals

         23  concluded, our children have been deprived of their

         24  constitutional rights to an adequate education, and

         25  one of the primary reasons is the fact that they
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          2  were crammed into the largest classes in the State.

          3                 New York City parents, teachers, and

          4  advocates agree that a ridiculously large class

          5  sizes are the most important, unaddressed problem in

          6  our school system today, as found by a recent online

          7  poll, carried out by the Fordham Center, in which

          8  reducing class size was the top priority of over 500

          9  respondents, outpolling by 40 percent the next three

         10  options combined.

         11                 In contrast, only four percent agreed

         12  with the Mayor's current priorities for our schools.

         13    New Yorkers as a whole agree, and in a Newsday

         14  poll taken last Fall, New York City voters were

         15  asked, "What is the biggest issue facing the City

         16  public School system?", their top concern again, was

         17  class size.

         18                 It's no surprise why.  Even though

         19  class sizes have declined somewhat in the early

         20  grades, because of State funding, and enrollment

         21  declined, there are still too many kids in classes

         22  of 28 or more.  And last year, 24 New York City

         23  school districts out of 32, reported average class

         24  sizes that exceeded 20.  Still, the average class

         25  size in most schools in the early grades has led to
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          2  improvements in test scores in these grades.

          3                 On the other hand, we've seen little

          4  or no improvement in our middle schools, as shown by

          5  the fact that our eighth grade State test scores and

          6  NAEP scores are flat or declining.  Nor have our

          7  tragically high drop out rates fundamentally

          8  improved.  And according the just- released MMR, the

          9  graduation rate fell a full percentage point from

         10  54.3 percent to 53.2 percent.  And actually, those

         11  figures are significantly inflated, because the real

         12  graduation rate doesn't include any of the special

         13  ed kids in segregated settings.  Nor does it count

         14  the thousands of kids who are discharged from the

         15  system every year.

         16                 Why are our graduation rates so low?

         17  Our middle and high schools are set up for failure.

         18  With the largest class sizes in the State, and among

         19  the largest in the nation.

         20                 And I brought some visuals here

         21  because I was told to by your staff, so I'm pleased

         22  to show them.  There's been a  -- despite what the

         23  Mayor has been claiming, there's been little or no

         24  improvement in seventh grade class, eighth grade

         25  class size over the last four years.  Class sizes
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          2  still average about 28 students per class.

          3                 Compare this to middle school class

          4  sizes in the rest of the State, which are about 22;

          5  nationally, about 23.  And for all the

          6  industrialized G7 countries, 20 to 25.

          7                 Neither has class sizes in our high

          8  school significantly improved over time.  Class

          9  sizes in our high school still average 29 to 30.

         10  And here's a visual for that.  Again, this

         11  underestimates the problem.  In October 2004, there

         12  were over 11,000 high school classes that violated

         13  the UFT cap of 34.  And the same thing is

         14  reoccurring this Fall.  And right now, at Kennedy

         15  High School and Washington Irving High School, last

         16  week, I received reports of classes with 40

         17  students.  These conditions are atrocious.  If you

         18  ask almost any parent with a middle or high school,

         19  or a teach who works at one, they will tell you that

         20  the most  --  even those students who are thriving

         21  and motivated up to this point begin to become

         22  disengaged and fall behind.  And no wonder, when

         23  their teachers are unable to give them any

         24  significant attention or help.

         25                 Now the problem in middle and high
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          2  schools is exacerbated by teaching load, typically

          3  five classes per day.  And I have a visual of that

          4  as well.  The average teaching load in New York City

          5  is about 150 students per class, compared to only 89

          6  in the rest of the country.  Almost twice as large.

          7  As a result of having too many students, most

          8  teachers don't assign much written work.  And when

          9  they do, they usually just skim through and jot down

         10  grades but don't bother to correct errors or give

         11  suggestions for improvement.  With 150 students a

         12  day, it would take simply too long.

         13                 As one teacher wrote me, the only

         14  students who can succeed in the current system are

         15  above- average intelligent children, from a highly

         16  supportive family environment.  The others fall

         17  through the cracks.  Truly, our middle and high

         18  schools are Darwinian jungles where only the

         19  strongest survive.

         20                 So we need to reduce class size and

         21  teaching load in all of our middle and high schools

         22  if we want to improve outcomes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Can you please

         24  wrap up.

         25                 MS. HAIMSON: All right.  I want to
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          2  show one --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I have to move

          4  this because I have a process.  I'm trying to reach

          5  an objective.

          6                 MS. HAIMSON: All right.  I just want

          7  to show a visual about the number of seats created

          8  over the last four year. And that's before cuts to

          9  the Capital Plan.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.  Would you

         11  submit all of those to us please.

         12                 MS. HAIMSON: I will end with the

         13  words of Norma Genao, principal in East Harlem, PS

         14  185, who says, "...All children in this City, this

         15  State, this country are entitled to the benefits of

         16  smaller classes.  Speaking as an educator, it should

         17  not be a privilege, it should be a right."  Thank

         18  you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         20  Charles Jordan, President of the United Parents

         21  Association.

         22                 MR. JORDAN: My pleasure Mr. Jackson.

         23  And I'd like to congratulate you on your position,

         24  and it's good to see Jan.

         25                 I feel a little empowered being
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          2  between, or in the middle of two of my Board

          3  members.

          4                 Good afternoon Mr. Jackson and the

          5  other Board members that are present on the

          6  Education Committee.  Thank you for this opportunity

          7  to speak with you today.  My name, as it was

          8  mentioned, and I am currently serving as the

          9  President of the United Parents Associations of New

         10  York City, the oldest parent advocacy group in New

         11  York City.  A Citywide organization, UPA has been a

         12  supporter of the Campaign for Fiscal Equity law suit

         13  from the very beginning, just as we have always

         14  fought for a quality education for the City's school

         15  children.

         16                 New York City schools has been under

         17  funded for decades, and too many of the kids have

         18  received a poor quality education as a consequence.

         19  How much longer will City kids have to attend

         20  schools bursting at the seams with class sizes that

         21  far exceed those found anywhere else in the State?

         22  How long will City students and parents have to

         23  watch as the best, the brightest, and the most

         24  experienced teachers exodus to higher- paying

         25  positions in suburban schools?  How long before
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          2  every school in the City of New York have a science

          3  lab with up- to- date equipment and a qualified

          4  science teacher?  How long until all of our school

          5  buildings are made accessible for the disabled, and

          6  until children with special needs receive all the

          7  services they're entitled to?

          8                 How long must we wait for our high

          9  schools to be back on single sessions and no child

         10  is forced to eat lunch at 10 AM?  How long until all

         11  our playgrounds are free from temporary portable

         12  classrooms and open again for children to run and

         13  play and exercise?  How long before every child in

         14  New York City has full access to computers and other

         15  technology so necessary to complete and succeed in

         16  the world today?  How much longer will the City's

         17  children have to suffer while those in the suburbs

         18  thrive?

         19                 In short, how long do we have to wait

         20  until all children in the State of New York have the

         21  opportunity for a sound, basic education?

         22                 Apparently, the answer to these

         23  questions is forever, according to Governor Pataki.

         24  And many of our legislators.  Well, forever is not

         25  acceptable.  Parents will not stand by quietly while
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          2  another generation's hopes for the future are

          3  dashed.  We expect the Governor and Legislature to

          4  use some of the State's growing budget surplus to

          5  make a downpayment on CFE funds owed to the City's

          6  students.  To our City's students.

          7                 We will continue to raise our voices

          8  until elected officials comply with the court's

          9  order.  If they don't, New York City parents will

         10  come out in force to elect others who will.

         11                 And I thank you for this opportunity

         12  on behalf of United Parents Association of New York

         13  City.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you Mr.

         15  Jordan.  And our last speaker on this panel is April

         16  Humphrey, from the Alliance for Quality Education.

         17                 MS. HUMPHREY: Hi.  My name is April

         18  Humphrey.  I'm the New York City Coordinator for the

         19  Alliance for Quality Education.

         20                 Kathleen Gomez, our Board Member

         21  presented many of our arguments earlier.  I just

         22  wanted to take a moment to respond to some issues

         23  that arose earlier in the hearing.

         24                 The Alliance for Quality Education is

         25  a coalition of parent and teacher and community-
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          2  based organization from all around the State.  We

          3  are advocating, this year, and lobbying for passage

          4  of the Schools for New York's Future Act.  This is

          5  legislation that essentially would implement the CFE

          6  court order for New York City and for other high-

          7  needs areas or districts all around the State, so

          8  that all children around this State get the adequate

          9  education that was determined in the Campaign for

         10  Fiscal Equity law suit.

         11                 This legislation has been introduced

         12  in the Assembly.  It's known as Bill A- 100.  And it

         13  is my understanding that now that there is a new

         14  Education Chair, who has been appointed in the

         15  Assembly, that this legislation is being considered

         16  for passage soon.

         17                 Where we have not seen any action on

         18  this is in the Senate.  And I know that it has been

         19  pointed out, there are four members of the Majority

         20  from New York City in the Senate, and that those

         21  members have been pointed out in the press and in

         22  the media recently for their inaction on this issue.

         23    And the reason for that is because make the

         24  difference in terms of support for this legislation

         25  in Albany.  As many of you know, we have what's

                                                            130

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  called the "strong leader system" in Albany, that

          3  means the majority party in each house essentially

          4  rules, and the Assembly has decided that they want

          5  to move forward with this.  Senate Majority Leader

          6  Joe Bruno has decided that he does not want to move

          7  forward with this. Those four members from New York

          8  City have an obligation to the children of this

          9  City.  They make the difference in terms of the

         10  number of votes that would be needed to pass this

         11  legislation.  If just those four would turn away

         12  from Senate Majority Leader Joe Bruno for on this

         13  one issue, we would have enough votes to pass this

         14  legislation and to get this CFE money.  And so far,

         15  they have not indicated that they support whatsoever

         16  for the Schools for New York's Future Act.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I want to thank

         18  you all for coming in and giving testimony.  And we

         19  appreciate the organizations that you represent.

         20  Understanding that this is a process, this

         21  resolution is a will of the body.  It has not

         22  affective law.  But we thank you for coming in and

         23  giving testimony.  Thank you.

         24                 Our next witness is Chancellor Joel

         25  Klein. Chancellor, welcome.  Good afternoon.  And
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          2  Deputy Chancellor Kathleen Grimm, welcome also.  All

          3  of us were standing at a press conference since two

          4  o'clock today with Mayor Bloomberg.  Maybe you could

          5  tell us a little bit about that and you can go on

          6  with your testimony.

          7                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: There you go.  Let

          8  me say that again.  I want to thank you Chairman

          9  Jackson and Members of the City Council Education

         10  Committee for inviting me today to testify about the

         11  Campaign for Fiscal Equity case.

         12                 Chairman Jackson, I'm especially

         13  honored that I was asked to appear in the Council

         14  Chambers on the day of your first hearing as

         15  Chairman.  And I think you know this, I look forward

         16  to working with you.

         17                 Thirteen years ago, in fact, it was

         18  you, Council Member Jackson, and a group of parents

         19  who sued the State, as you talked about before at

         20  the press conference, arguing that Albany was not

         21  sending our City schools enough money.  That was 13

         22  years ago.  Here we are, still talking.  You were

         23  right then, and you are right now.  We all know that

         24  the State's highest court agreed with us several

         25  years ago.  But still, three years after that
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          2  decision, where the court made clear that we

          3  deserved billions and billions of capital and

          4  operating aid, Albany has not yet provided the

          5  funding.

          6                 We've created 43,800 new seats over

          7  the past three years, but still, too many of our

          8  children are trying to learn in over crowded

          9  classrooms, temporary trailers, dilapidated

         10  buildings, and obsolete facilities.  The State is

         11  ignoring the City's $13.1 billion five- year Capital

         12  Plan, which asks Albany to contribute $6.5 billion

         13  over that five- year period.  It is also ignoring

         14  the CFE order, which calls for Albany to contribute

         15  even more capital funds.  I want to underscore this.

         16  Because under the order, it's $9.2 billion over five

         17  years.  By not responding, Albany is hurting

         18  hundreds of thousands of kids every year.

         19                 Last year, when Albany didn't

         20  contribute one additional cent to the City's Capital

         21  Program, the Mayor and this Council not only added

         22  an additional $1.3 billion, they advanced $1.3

         23  billion as well.  This year, yet again, the

         24  Executive Budget Request excludes the City and

         25  ignores CFE.  This year, the City can't keep lending
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          2  money to our State.  This puts 21 school

          3  construction projects at immediate risk.

          4                 As the Governor and the State

          5  Legislature disregard CFE, our children are not just

          6  being deprived adequate facilities, they are also

          7  being denied billions of dollars of extra operating

          8  that they need and deserve.

          9                 It was almost two years ago when the

         10  Mayor stood before business leaders and educators to

         11  outline our plan to spending the new CFE operating

         12  aid.  While we continue to wait for the Governor,

         13  the State Senate, and the State Assembly to comply,

         14  our plans are collecting dust.  Our youngest

         15  children are going without the early childhood

         16  programs that we know will help them succeed as they

         17  grow up.  Our special education students and our

         18  English Language Learners are being denied new

         19  services and curricula they need to reach their

         20  potential.  We haven't been able to provide all the

         21  after- school and extended time programs we know our

         22  children need.  We are unable to hire more teachers

         23  to reduce the number of children in each class.  We

         24  haven't been able to launch some of the aggressive

         25  teacher and principal attraction and retention
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          2  programs we need to stock our schools with the high

          3  quality educators that our children need.

          4                 The Governor's response to CFE's

          5  order to fund the City's operating budget, lie the

          6  response to Capital is acutely lacking.  This year,

          7  he wants to provide just $375 million Statewide  --

          8  at the very best, that means the City would receive

          9  $225 million.  In the first year alone, of the

         10  court- ordered plan, however, the State is supposed

         11  to provide us $1.4 billion.  At the same time, the

         12  Governor is denying the City its share in increase

         13  in operating aid.  This is quite remarkable to me.

         14  Under the Governor's proposal, if you combine STAR-

         15  Plus program that the Executive Budget proposes,

         16  with increases in general school operating aid, and

         17  you calculate the percentage that New York City

         18  receives as State aid, it turns out that out of a

         19  total of $745 million Statewide, we receive on $64

         20  million.  That's just over eight percent.  Not 38

         21  percent, as some people say.  Eight percent. And

         22  that's wrong.

         23                 We're doing everything we can with

         24  the resources we have.  In Fiscal Year 2007, the

         25  City plans to spend $3.2 billion more annually on
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          2  behalf of the Department of Education than when the

          3  Mayor took office.  In that time, the State has only

          4  increased its spending by $1.2 billion.  And, we are

          5  starting to see some positive results.  Last year,

          6  as I've reviewed for you often, our scores on math

          7  and ELA across the City went up.  The federal NAEP

          8  standards showed that more New York fourth graders

          9  are reading at or above basic, than students at

         10  almost any other major urban area. And we're

         11  beginning to close that intolerable achievement gap

         12  between the races.  Last year, our African- American

         13  and Latino students achieved their greatest one-

         14  year gains and highest performance since the State

         15  began its testing programs.  And we saw similar

         16  affects on the NAEP.

         17                 But there is so much more we could do

         18  if we had those adequate resources.  I know that

         19  this Council agrees with me on the urgency of the

         20  situation.  What it comes down to is this: The

         21  highest court in our State found that our kids are

         22  being short changed, and they deserve equity.  Now

         23  is the time for all of us to come together and urge

         24  Albany, and make sure that they comply with the CFE

         25  order.
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          2                 I hope we can rally parents,

          3  teachers, principals, and other New Yorkers to work

          4  with us to do anything and everything we can to

          5  right this historic wrong.

          6                 Once again I want to acknowledge your

          7  unique role in all of this, Mr. Chairman.  Thank

          8  you, and I welcome your questions.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well Chancellor,

         10  let me just say, thank you for coming here this

         11  afternoon and expressing your point of view on

         12  behalf of the 1.1 million school children.  In fact,

         13  you are right.  We stand united.  In fact, all of

         14  the witnesses today, there was no witness that

         15  testified, to my knowledge, against the resolution,

         16  calling on Albany to give us what we're rightfully

         17  due for our children.

         18                 And as I said, you may have heard,

         19  this is a process that we're involved with.  This is

         20  not a law.  This is a resolution which is the will

         21  of the body.  And we expect, just like this

         22  afternoon, when we were standing united with you and

         23  the Mayor, and Chris Quinn, and Randi Weingarten,

         24  for all New Yorkers to stand united to ensure that

         25  our children receive the money to receive an
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          2  adequate, not an excellent education, not the best

          3  education that money can buy, but that money, which

          4  is from the court's basically says and adequate

          5  education.  We all know that our kids need a lot

          6  more.

          7                 I'm going to ask my colleagues if you

          8  have any questions of the witness.  Council Members.

          9    Chancellor, let me just say, thank you again for

         10  coming in.  We wish we would have had you earlier in

         11  front of more people, but the most important thing

         12  is, that you're standing up, and you're standing

         13  with us on this issue.  And we appreciate it very

         14  much.

         15                 CHANCELLOR KLEIN: Thank you very

         16  much, and amen.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         18                 Our next panel is Robin Simmons, from

         19  Harry Truman High School, Region Two, District 11.

         20  Oh, I'm sorry.  Anna Santos from CCB.  Is Anna here?

         21    Come on up Anna.  And Susan Crawford, from the

         22  Right to Read Project and District Three; and

         23  Vanessa Rodriguez, from an NYC BOE, Department of

         24  Education; and Rob Bowen, of Black Alliance for

         25  Education.  Mr. Bowen.
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          2                 And this is the last panel.  If

          3  there's anyone that did not have the opportunity to

          4  speak, can please see the Sergeant at- Arms.  With

          5  that, Susan Crawford.  Okay.  Go ahead please. Susan

          6  Crawford.  Vanessa is next.  Rob Bowen, is that

          7  correct?  We have four.  And Robin.  Who is Robin.

          8  No, Robin was here already. We're missing one tag.

          9  Okay.  Anna.  Anna Santos.  Where's Anna? You're

         10  Anna.  Okay.  We can you from your left to your

         11  right then okay?  Please.  Just identify yourself

         12  for the record.

         13                 MS. CRAWFORD: Thank you.  Susan

         14  Crawford.  District Three parent.  Also Founder of

         15  the Right to Read Project.  And thank you Council

         16  Member Jackson, and congratulations.  And thank you

         17  to the newly empaneled Education Committee.

         18                 I just want to describe briefly, the

         19  Right to Read Project is formed to find funding for

         20  appropriate reading interventions from CFE and all

         21  other sources.  Only handful are currently in place

         22  at this time, reaching only a handful of struggling

         23  readers.

         24                 I would also ask that the Council,

         25  those here and those not here, take into account
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          2  that many of us in New York City see you as our

          3  default Board of Education.  Since under Mayoral

          4  control, neither parents nor taxpayers have any sort

          5  of representative role in how decisions are being

          6  made, or how for how our children are being

          7  educated, nor how any of the Department of

          8  Education's money is being spent.  In this role, I

          9  would ask that you oversee that CFE funding when it

         10  comes through, that it not be used in any way that

         11  would further an agenda of turning the New York City

         12  public school system into PS NYC Inc.

         13                 I ask that this Committee ask the

         14  questions we cannot ask.  Where is our money going?

         15  How and where will the CFE money be going?  Who is

         16  making the decisions about where it should go?  With

         17  what companies or persons are DoE contracts being

         18  made? What are they being made for?  How much are

         19  they for?  How do we know if the educational

         20  decisions these contracts represent are working?

         21                 I would also ask that you strongly

         22  consider that on the issue of charter schools, what

         23  is bad for Upstate New York is bad for Downstate New

         24  York.  And that the cap on New York City charter

         25  schools should not be lifted until the CFE money is
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          2  dispersed and budgeted to address the numerous

          3  inequities that you were hearing about today.

          4                 As to where CFE money should come

          5  from, you have heard several references already

          6  today to the New York State Prison system, and I

          7  would suggest this be the first place the State look

          8  for funding CFE.  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.  Anna

         10  Santos.

         11                 MS. SANTOS: My name is Anna Santos,

         12  and I'm the parent of three children in District

         13  Nine.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Pull it a little

         15  closer to you Anna.  District Nine is in the Bronx,

         16  is that correct?

         17                 MS. SANTOS: Yes.  It's in the Bronx.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.  Go ahead

         19  please.

         20                 MS. SANTOS: I have my son is in

         21  fourth grade, my daughter is in kindergarten, and I

         22  have a younger daughter who is three years old

         23  that's in federally Head Start program.

         24                 I'm here on behalf of CCB.  We're a

         25  community collaborative to improve Bronx schools.
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          2  And I was one of the co founders for the program of

          3  Elite Teaching Program, that through the UFT

          4  contract, now is going to be expanded, hopefully,

          5  with the CFE money to really ensure the basic

          6  education of our children, and to retain those

          7  teachers that we so, so well deserve in our

          8  community.

          9                 What I did wanted to just allude,

         10  that one thing, is that everyone really has said

         11  everything that I wanted to say at this point.  But

         12  I just wanted to bring out that our students really

         13  have been left behind in the Bronx, throughout the

         14  City. And as a parent, and we have organized around

         15  the Elite Teacher program, and it's to me, our Elite

         16  Teachers really have started their success in this

         17  program.  In our neglected schools, in our smallest,

         18  confined spaces, these teachers really have worked

         19  hard, and have proven their expertise in education

         20  area.  And really, really being able to retain those

         21  teachers.  If you heard them, the teachers really do

         22  appreciate the expertise from our Elite Teachers.

         23                 Like I said, this program will

         24  actually  --  the Elite Teacher program, I believe

         25  is a solution now, while we're waiting for the new

                                                            142

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  buildings to be built, and as we're waiting for the

          3  repairs to our old buildings, this program will

          4  actually help teach our students and start giving

          5  them the basic education that they need.

          6                 So the money that does go into, I do

          7  suggest that if you guys could look at the Elite

          8  Teacher program as being at least a part of that CFE

          9  fund.

         10                 And I thank you for having this

         11  hearing, and hearing out what the parents really

         12  need to say.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I want to thank

         14  you for coming in.  As a parent and expressing your

         15  views on behalf of your children, and on behalf of

         16  CCB.   Next we have Vanessa Rodriguez, NYC BOE.

         17                 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Hi.  I want to thank

         18  you for inviting me to testify today  --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Are you

         20  representing the Department of Education?  Or

         21  representing yourself?

         22                 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Well I was worried

         23  about that when I put it down.  And I thought, I'm

         24  here to represent the children. I'm a teacher.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: But you're not
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          2  here as an official  --

          3                 MS. RODRIGUEZ: I'm here for myself.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.  So you

          5  work at DoE?

          6                 MS. RODRIGUEZ: I work at the South

          7  School of Science.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          9                 MS. RODRIGUEZ: I have been teaching

         10  for eight years, and in this system for seven years.

         11    And I come to you from a school that we rarely

         12  hear about when we talk about CFE.  My school is not

         13  a struggling school.  It's not failing.  We have new

         14  science labs, new computers.  We have all qualified

         15  teachers in math and sciences in this school. And I

         16  would say, that from the outside, we looked

         17  wonderful.  We were given the Blackboard Award for

         18  the most outstanding school in the City, as a middle

         19  school.

         20                 And yet, I'm on the inside.  And I

         21  see that it has affected us differently.  We're in

         22  the former District Two, Region Nine.  And the lack

         23  of funds has hit us as well.

         24                 I brought with me today a simple

         25  overhead projector. But because I brought this to
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          2  share with you today, no teacher in the school can

          3  use the overhead projector today.  And so, all of

          4  the teachers on my floor cannot use overheads for

          5  after school, or for extended day.

          6                 We create a schedule at the beginning

          7  of each day for who gets to use the bulb.  And we

          8  have our kids walk around with wads of paper towels

          9  because the bulb is so hot, because everyone's been

         10  using it the whole day, because we can't afford to

         11  get anymore bulbs.

         12                 And as teachers that are very strong

         13  teachers, and have come out of very strong teaching

         14  universities, we understand that for a strong

         15  reading and writing workshop, we scaffold for our

         16  kids and we put on the overhead how we read, and how

         17  we write, and the strategies.  So it may seem silly,

         18  but for those really strong schools, that's what we

         19  need.

         20                 In addition, I brought with you our

         21  test prep workbooks.  And as you know, for No Child

         22  Left Behind, and the high State testing, most

         23  schools have implemented test prep units within

         24  their curriculum.  This is even something that

         25  teachers college recommends, to do it as another
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          2  unit within your everyday.  And we were fortunate

          3  enough to afford to buy workbooks for the kids to

          4  work in.  However, we could only afford to buy half

          5  of a class set. Which is fine.  Our kids work in

          6  partners, which is great. However, I had to put on

          7  my Summer supply list that all kids needed to bring

          8  in large erasers, because at the end of each test

          9  prep class, all of the kids have to go back through

         10  the lesson and erase everything they've written

         11  inside of it, so that the next class can also use

         12  the workbook.  Because we can't photocopy, because

         13  that works against copyright laws.

         14                 In addition to that, these books are

         15  stored in our class where our literacy coach works

         16  out of.  And our speech coach works out of.  And our

         17  occupational therapist works out of.  And the

         18  special ed teacher does her pull- out classes there.

         19  It's a broom closet that's about the size of five by

         20  eight.

         21                 And in addition to that, I wrote on

         22  what we get to write on every day, and the photo

         23  copies that our kids get to have. We have to photo

         24  copy all one- sided pages on scrap paper, because

         25  the time the third quarter rolls around, we've run
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          2  out of white paper where we could photo copy on the

          3  front and back.

          4                 And just again, I appreciate being

          5  able to come and talk.  I come from the most

          6  outstanding school in New York City. It's the school

          7  we all say we love.  So, thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Let me just say

          9  thank you. Because it's important, you said on the

         10  outside, it looks so beautiful, but on the inside,

         11  the needs are so great.  And you've just pointed

         12  that out very clearly.  Rob Bowen, the Black

         13  Alliance for Education.

         14                 MR. BOWEN: Thank you very much.  My

         15  name is Rob Bowen.  And I wanted to first thank

         16  Councilman Lanza for giving us a basic civics lesson

         17  by saying that those of us who are in support of

         18  CFE, and as you mentioned, all of us are, just

         19  recognize that there were some things that could

         20  have been done in terms of standing up and refusing

         21  to pass the budget over these many years.

         22                 I'd also like to thank my sister for

         23  collaborating on that civics lesson by saying the

         24  reason those four individuals were pointed out is

         25  because it was their failure to stand up and support
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          2  that keeps the bill from being passed.

          3                 So I think that's a very important

          4  understanding.

          5                 I have a question, and that is, 13

          6  years ago, when CFE started, I thought that the

          7  premise, or the driving force, factor, was the fact

          8  that the resources and materials in certain school

          9  districts were not equitable to resources and text

         10  books in other districts.  And that in chance of

         11  pursuing that, it was found out, or at least

         12  reported, that New York City was receiving less

         13  money than they should have been receiving to in

         14  fact, purchase those materials, text books, and

         15  resources.

         16                 And now, we're hearing CFE money

         17  being used for  -- I remember a couple of months ago

         18  they were talking about giving teachers increased

         19  monies.  And I'm all for giving teachers increased

         20  monies, but I did not know that that was the $5.6

         21  billion was supposed to be allocated for.  The new

         22  schools.  I don't know how much, and I guess that's

         23  part of the question, was for capital budget in

         24  terms of constructing new schools.

         25                 I know in terms of the equity of the
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          2  1,356 schools, we still don't know how many have the

          3  science labs, and the things the sister was talking

          4  to, have the same kind of resources across the

          5  board.  Of the $151 million that are spent for text

          6  books, that was reported last year in this Council,

          7  the DoE was still not able to guarantee that it was

          8  equitable across the board.  We know we don't have

          9  the science labs, the art classes et cetera.

         10                 So in terms of this  --  oh, also in

         11  terms of I think it was July 30th of 2004, the State

         12  was in violation of doing what the court mandated

         13  they do, which was part of doing a cost analysis and

         14  ensuring that all students receive a sound, had the

         15  materials, and received a sound, basic education.

         16                 Do we know that that was done?  So

         17  that when we talked about being in support of this,

         18  we've been in support of it since '93, some of us,

         19  and as we found out about it, more and more people.

         20  So now in New York City, very people are saying,

         21   "I'm against CFE, and I don't think we should

         22  receive a $5.6 (million). But the question is still,

         23  of that $5.6 (million) it seems that if you have one

         24  hundred people, they have a hundred different ideas

         25  of how that money is going to be spent and
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          2  allocated.

          3                 And the question is, we should be

          4  very clear, or are we clear, on that?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I want to thank

          6  you.  I mean, obviously, you have a lot of

          7  questions, and I think that one of the young ladies

          8  behind you, Jessica Garcia, from CFE, will be able

          9  to answer a lot of those questions.  But let me just

         10  say, clearly the intention of filing CFE was that

         11  New York City was being short changed.  And New York

         12  City is one district, as a district, compared to the

         13  rest of the districts.  So we're trying to get what

         14  we're entitled to.  And this resolution is part of

         15  the process in that.

         16                 MR. BOWEN: The irony about this being

         17  a district is that formerly, you talked about class

         18  size, we're the only school district in the State

         19  that does not report class size by class. But

         20  rather, by school average.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well maybe we

         22  need to try to change that.

         23                 Our last witness is Betsy Combier,

         24  from parentadvocates.org.  Betsy.

         25                 MS. COMBIER: Hi.  Yes.  Thank you
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          2  very much.

          3                 I just wanted to say that thank you

          4  again for allowing me to speak for a second, and

          5  congratulations on becoming the Chancellor.  And

          6  finally, I'm hoping  --  not the Chancellor, I'm

          7  sorry.  The Chair of the Edu  --  soon.  Soon.

          8  Maybe next time.

          9                 I'm and advocate, and I have a

         10  website and we get about a hundred e- mails a day

         11  from parents of children being thrown out of their

         12  schools.  Teachers being thrown out of their

         13  schools. And principals being thrown out of their

         14  schools, because they speak out about what's really

         15  happening there.  And I offer that in terms of the

         16  general population, I can honestly say that I think

         17  I know what's going on out there from seven years of

         18  advocating for children, parents, and teachers.

         19                 And we need to make sure that we stay

         20  focused on getting the money for the children.  And

         21  what I'm hoping today, the result of today, and

         22  possibly my speaking out, will happen is I am

         23  extremely supportive of you, and I think we must get

         24  this money as quickly as possible.

         25                 But on the other side of the coin,
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          2  I'm hoping that we don't align ourselves too much,

          3  and fold ourselves into the Board of Education.  And

          4  thank the Mayor and the Chancellor for doing a great

          5  job, because we need you, Bob, to stay independent

          6  of the forces out there that are hurting our

          7  children with them too.

          8                 And I just wanted to offer  --  I

          9  have in front of me, 620 people that were hired to

         10  work at TWEED (phonetic).  These 17 pages, you can

         11  see the columns, are people that work at TWEED, and

         12  make over $100,000.  And in seven years of

         13  advocating for parents and teachers in this City, I

         14  have not heard of 600 of them. And their job

         15  descriptions are here, their salaries.  I think this

         16  is an outrage.  Seventeen pages.  More than 600

         17  people are sitting there and these are people that I

         18  try every day to reach by phone, and I can't because

         19  they're not there.  They're out to lunch.  Oh, I'll

         20  get back to you.  I mean, I have serious questions

         21  of where our money is going to go, and where it is

         22  going.  And I think this shows it right here.  So if

         23  you want to copy it, it's going on my website later

         24  today.

         25                 I think we have to focus on data like
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          2  that.  And I got that through FOIL, and I have 14

          3  other FOIL requests out there for various data.  And

          4  the Board of Education is not complying with the

          5  Freedom For Information Request law at all.  And I

          6  was on the phone with them today.

          7                 So anyway, slowly, we're getting this

          8  data, because obviously, they don't want us to have

          9   --  but please.  Realize that we support you, but

         10  we can't support other forces out there. So do your

         11  thing, and do it one hundred percent.  You know,

         12  we're all for you.  So thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I want to

         14  thank you Betsy, for coming in and giving testimony.

         15    Obviously, I stand united today at the press

         16  conference with the Mayor and them because we're all

         17  standing of the same thing.  And that is to bring

         18  the money down to New York City that our children

         19  rightfully deserve.  And primarily, the focus is on

         20  capital.  Because clearly, capital will be able to

         21  build schools and to make the major repairs.

         22  Because if repairs that are in the five- year

         23  capital plan are not all of the repairs that need to

         24  be done.  Just the most urgent.  And so, you know,

         25  when you talk about all of the repairs and all of
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          2  the schools that need to be built, and you know,

          3  it's more than $13.1 billion.  It's more like

          4  probably $40 billion. Realistically.  But that's not

          5  a five- year capital plan, but that's you know,

          6  assessing the full needs of what needs to be done to

          7  give our children the physical facilities in order

          8  to have a good education.  Similar to those in the

          9  surrounding communities that surround New York City.

         10                 So I'm standing united today.

         11  Obviously, I've been united with my wife for 30

         12  years, and I don't agree with her on everything.

         13  Let me just say that.  And I say that because I say

         14  that with the Chancellor and the Mayor.  We will

         15  stand united on certain things, and we will not

         16  stand united because we disagree. And it's okay.

         17  And that's part of life's process.  And hopefully,

         18  in the long run, you know, this role, as far as the

         19  City Council's Education Committee, it's oversight.

         20  So we try to have input in the beginning, and all

         21  the way through the process, so hopefully we reach

         22  compromise, we can all stand together.  And if not,

         23  then we'll carry out the duties and responsibilities

         24  that we're entitled to do, by having oversight

         25  hearings.
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          2                 So I want to thank you all for coming

          3  in, even though you're the last panel, this was a

          4  very important panel.  And as I said, the objective

          5  and goal is to pass a resolution.

          6                 We're going to recess this meeting,

          7  and not close it out.  And we will vote on the

          8  resolution, probably Wednesday, when we reconvene,

          9  either about 10:30 when we reconvene and we will

         10  vote out the resolution at that point in time.

         11                 So ladies and gents, thank you for

         12  coming in.  And with that, this meeting is recessed.

         13                 (Hearing concluded at 4:25 p.m.)
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